MENDOCINO CITY COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS 12-18-2023 MEETING AGENDA

MENDOCINO CITY COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
P. 0. BOX 1029
MENDOCINO, CA 95460
Business Phone {707) 937-5790 Treatment Plant (707) 937-5751 Fax (707) 937-3837

AGENDA

REGULAR MEETING

Monday, December 18, 2023

5:30 PM

Mendocino Community Center, 10525 Schoo! St., Mendocino< CA 95460

1) CALLTO ORDER
2) APPROVAL OF AGENDA
3) PUBLIC COMMENT: non agenda items

4)  COMMUNICATIONS

5) FINANCIAL REPORT
Discussion and Possible Action to Approve District Disbursements/Expenditures
a) September Disbursements
b) October Disbursements
¢} November Disbursements

6) CONSENT AGENDA
All matters on the Consent Agenda are to be approved by one action without discussion unless a Board
Member requests separate action on a specific item.
a) APPROVAL OF MINUTES from 10-30-23

7) DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING ANY CONSENT AGENDA ITEM NEEDING SEPARATE
ACTION

8) NEW BUSINESS

a) Discussion and Possible Action to approve the Audit for the year end of June 30, 2023
Staff recommends a motion to approve the 22-23 audit, vear ending June 30, 2023

b) Introduction of Ordinance 2023-01: Conflict of Interest Code for Mendocino City Community Services
District
Staff recommends discussion of Ordinance 2023-01: Conflict of Interest Code for Mendocino City
Community Services District and adoption at the next meeting

¢) Discussion of potential revisions to the Governance Guidelines document

d) Discussion and Possible Action to approve the RFQ for Legal Services

e) Discussion and Possible Action related to a Community Water System
Staff recommends: forming an ad hoc committee to work with the public, SAFER, and GHD as we
investigate a potential community water system.

f}  Election and appointment of Board Officers

g} Discussion and Possible Action to appoint Standing Committee Assignments

h) Discussion and Possible Action to review existing ad hoc committees

9) OLD BUSINESS

10) DISTRICT SUPERINTENDENT'S REPORT
Monthly Report

11} GROUNDWATER MANAGEMENT
Monthly Groundwater Management Report -Superintendent




MENDOCINO CITY COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS 12-18-2023 MEETING AGENDA

12) COMMITTEE UPDATES
13) MATTERS FROM BOARD MEMBERS

14) ADJOURNMENT

STANDING COMMITTEES: For 2023

Finance: Dennak Murphy and Ishvi Aum
Personnel: Dennak Murphy and Matthew Miksak
Plant Operations: Dennak Murphy and Jim Sullivan
Safety: Jim Sullivan

Street Lighting: Jim Sullivan and Donna Feiner
Groundwater Management:------------nnv- Jim Sullivan

Pursuant to Americans with Disability Act (ADA Title 1), MICCSD will make reasonable arrangements to ensure
accessibility to the meeting. If you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact the
business office at 707- 937-5790.




G e 2023 e
’Ma b r:‘; SU, 4 i b T

MENDOC:NO C!TY COMMUN!TY SERVICES DISTRICT
Post Office Box 1029
Mendocino, CA 95460

(707) 937-5790 (t)

meccsd@men.org

DEVA DY ST N
BOARD OF DI

MENDOCINO CITY COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT SPECIAL BOARD MEETING
ACTION MINUTES - October 30, 2023

BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FAIR STATEMENT OF PROCEEDINGS
(PURSUANT TO CALIFORNIA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT LAW
Government Code §61000)

AGENDA ITEM NO. 1 — CALL TO ORDER - 5:00 p.m.

Present: Directors Donna Feiner, Matthew Miksak, Ishvi Aum VP Jim Sulhvan and preSIdmg was President
Dennak Murphy

Staff Present: District Superintendent, Ryany‘Rhoades

Public Present: Richard Green, Colin Morrow, Meredith Smith, Peter Lopez Tony Graham, Roy Heising, Dan
Potash, Noah Shepard, Ted VVnhams Ca!lle Dymyand others, names unknown

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2. - APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Board Action: Upon motion by Dxrector Femer and 2nd by VP Sulllvan IT IS ORDERED to approve the agenda.
The Motion carried by the foHowmg vote ,

AYE:5
AGENDA ITEM NO. 3 -PUBLIC COMMENT

Tom Teztlaff questions legal fees and comments on GWM

Cally Dym MCC President and Little River Inn owner interested in expanding District boundaries
Tony Graham requested public water system on agenda, concerns of conflict of interest

Peter Lopez discussed State Public Water System. Confusion exists. Seeking clarity.

Richard Green questions possible consolidation of Public Water Systems

Steve Gomes hands out ballots from 1985 and disagrees with GWM

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4 - COMMUNICATIONS

Tony Graham sent in a letter and Dennak responded via email
AGENDA ITEM NO. 5- FINANCIAL REPORT

Presenter: Bookkeeper, Kristine McKee

Board Comment: Director Aum, VP Sullivan and President Murphy



Doversn 3 F A
FApE £ oT 4

Board Action: Upon motion by . IT 1S ORDERED to approve the September disbursements. The Motion
carried by the following vote:

There was no action taken

AGENDA ITEM NO. 6- CONSENT AGENDA

APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM 10-3-23

Board Action: Upon motion by VP Sullivan and 2" by Director Feiner; lT !S ORDERED to approve the agenda.
The Motion carried by the following vote:

AYE: 5

AGENDAITEM NO. 7

None

AGENDAITEM NO. 8 —~ NEW BUSINESS

a)

Review of Ordinance 2016-2: Conflict of lnterest Code for Mendocino City Community Services District to
be introduced as Ordinance 2023-01: Conﬂlct of lnterest Code for Mendocmo City Community Services
District

Presenter: Dennak Murphy
Board Commentt"Director Aum ,
Public Comment: unknown due to recording‘: ,

Board Action: Upon motion by Director Aum and 2% by Director Feiner, IT IS ORDERED to create an ad
hoc committee of President Murphy and Director Miksak to review the Conflict of Interest policy for the
District. The Motion carried by the following vote:

AYE: 5

Formation of ad hoc committee to review and propose revisions to the MCCSD Governance Guidelines

Presenter: Dennak Murphy

Board Comment: Director Aum

Staff Comment: Ryan Rhoades

Public Comment: James Greg, unknown due to recording, Roy Helsing

Board Action: Upon motion by Director Feiner and 274 by VP Sullivan, IT IS ORDERED to create an ad
hoc committee of President Murphy and Director Aum to review the Governance Guidelines. The Motion
carried by the following vote:

AYE: 5

AGENDA ITEM NO. 9- OLD BUSINESS

None



N pu——
<O OF DIRECTO!

A CTEYE BRI TG \ 27 o
THON MINUTES —~ Octobse RIS AN !

AGENDA ITEM NO. 10- DISTRICT SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT

Presenter: Ryan Rhoades
Board Comment: Directors Aum, Feiner, VP Sullivan, and President Murphy

Public Comment: unknown due to recording, Tony Graham, Tom Tetzlaff

AGENDA ITEM NO. 11: GROUNDWATER MANAGEMENT

Presenter: Ryan Rhoades
Board Comment: President Murphy, Directors Aum and Feiner, VP Sulhvan

Public Comment: Tom Tetzlaff, Tony Graham
AGENDA ITEM NO. 12: COMMITTEE UPDATES

None

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13: MATTER FROM BOARD MEMBERS

President Murphy proposes establishment of ad hoc comm:ttee to work with staff around a community
water system,

Public Comment: Roy Helsing and an unknown due to recordmg comment with regards to President
Murphy’s suggestion. \

Pres Murphy notes that two issues are bemg raxsed Ccmmumty Water System and the Water Use
Standards that are in place.

Director Aum believes the two issues are connected Comm Water System will eliminate the Ordinance
which is so troublesome. Ad Hoc committee should address bothi issues.

Director Aum would like to be added to the GWM comm;ttee

AGENDA ITEM NO. 14: ADJOURNMENT i

IT 1S ORDERED to approve adjourning the meeting at 7:.00 p.m.

NOTICE: PUBLISHED MINUTES OF THE MENDOCiNO CITY COMMUNITY SERVICES
DISTRICT MEETINGS

e Effective May 11, 2020, the Board of Directors’ minutes will be produced in “action only” format.

e Minutes are considered draft until adopted/approved by the Board of Directors

»  Please reference the D/str/cts webS/te to obtain additional resource information for the Board of Directors:
www.mccsd.com.

Thank you for your interest in the proceedings of the Mendocino City Community Services District

Board of Directors



ROARD OF DiRECTOIRS A
BOARD OF DIRECTORS — AL

STANDING COMMITTEES:

T 0 R —— Dennak Murphy and Ishvi Aum
Personneli=ss=-msmmomomeocmoo . Dennak Murphy and Matthew Miksak
Plant Operations:--=-=========-emmeeeemmeoe Dennak Murphy and Jim Sullivan
1 N —— SR Jim Sullivan

Street Lighting:---=m-cm-mmmemmcemmme Donna Feiner and Jim Sullivan
Groundwater Management:---=-=-----re-w-- Jim Sullivan

Respectfully submitted,
Ryan Rhoades and Katie Bates



Memo

To: Board of Directors
From: Katie Bates
cc: Jim Jackson

Date: 12/11/2023

Re: Audit

The audit of the 2022-23 Fiscal Year has concluded. There are no observations/
recommendations for this year. MCCSD implemented the two recommendations from last year:
formalization of a capitalization policy and raise the limit of the crime insurance policy. There
were seven (7) audit adjustments proposed. They are the adjustments for depreciation, bond
value, note current portion and Calpers liability. Kristine McKee will make the necessary
adjustments in our books.



MENDOCINO CITY COMMUNITY
SERVICES DISTRICT

MENDOCINO, CALIFORNIA

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

JUNE 30, 2023

O'CONNOR & COMPANY




TABLE OF CONTENTS

Independent Auditors’ Report
Financial Statements:

Proprietary Fund - Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Fund - Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Proprietary Fund - Statement of Cash Flows
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Required Supplementary Information (unaudited):

Schedule of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability Schedule 1

Schedule of Pension Contributions

Schedule 2

PAGE

1-2

19

20



y 1701 NovaTo BLvD, SuiTe 302
= N 0, CA 94947
O'CONNOR & COMPANY o, (418) 457.1215
FAX. (415) 457-6735

- www.maocpa.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Directors
Mendocino City Community Services District
Mendocino, California

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities and the major fund of
Mendocino City Community Services District, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023, and the related notes
to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Mendocino City Community Services District's basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the business-type activities and the major fund of Mendocino City Community Services
District, as of June 30, 2023, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows thereof, for the year
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and the
State Controller's Minimum Audit Requirements for California Special Districts.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Mendocino City
Community Services District, and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Mendocino City Community Services District's
ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any
currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is-
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user based on the financial statements.




Board of Directors
Mendocino City Community Services District — Page 2

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

L]

L4

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of Mendocino City Community Services District's internal control. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about Mendocino City Community Services District’s ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that
we identified during the audit.

Management has omitted the Management's Discussion and Analysis that accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.
Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Qur opinion is not modified with
respect to this matter.

O’Connor & Company

Novato, California
December 8, 2023



Mendocino City Community Services District
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
Proprietary Fund
June 30, 2023

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and investments $ 485695
Accounts receivable 62,456
Inventory 2,626
Prepaid items 3,064
Total current assets 553,841
Capital assets (Note 3):
Non-depreciable assets 1,600,000
Depreciable assets (net of depreciation) 5,968,450
Total assets 8,122,291
DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOQURCES
Deferred outflows of resources - Pension (Note 4) 250,607
LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 66,243
Accrued expenses 15,535
Compensated absences 6,228
Deferred revenue -
Total current liabilities 88,006
Long-term liabilities:
Due within one year (Note 5) 56,270
Due in more than one year {Note 5) 2,285,532
Net pension liability (Note 4) 514,529
Total long-term liabilities 2,856,331
Total liabilities 2,844,337
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESQURCES
Deferred inflows of resources - Pension (Note 4) 49,640
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 5,226,648
Unrestricted 152,273
Total net position $ 5,378,921

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

-3-



Mendocino City Community Services District
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Proprietary Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Operating revenues:

Ground water and waste water fees $ 977,459
Property taxes 108,753
Intergovernmental revenue 22,000

Total operating revenues 1,108,212

Operating expenses:

Salaries and benefits 411,619
Waste water 245,792
Ground water management 197,292
Treatment 23,423
General and administrative 153,240
Depreciation 297,128
Total operating expenses 1,328,494
Operating income (loss) (220,282)
Non-operating revenues (expenses):
Interest income 3,426
Interest expense (63,604)
Total non-operating revenues (expenses) (60,178)
Changes in net position (280,460)
Net position, beginning of period 5,669,381
Net position, end of period $ 5,378,921

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

-4 -



Mendocino City Community Services District
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Proprietary Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers
Payments to employees

Payments to suppliers
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets

Payments on long-term debt
Capital grants
Interest paid on long-term debt

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities
Cash flows from non-capital and related financing activities:
Litigation settlement

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest earned
Net cash provided by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents - end of period

Recongiliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided {(used in) operating activities:
Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation

Changes in certain assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable

Inventory

Prepaid items

Deferred outflow of resources - pension plan
Accounts payable

Compensated absences

Deferred inflow of resources - pension plan

Net pension liability
Total adjustments
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

$ 1,074,024
(414,109)

(566,121)
93,794

(55,064)
(112,000)
(63,596)
(230,660)

3,426
3426

(133,440)
619,135

$ 485695
$  (220,282)

297,128

(34,187)

(3,064)

(177,531)
56,690
4,662

(149,148)
319,527

314,076

$ 93,794

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

-5.



NOTE 1 -

Mendocino City Community Services District
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Organization and Description of District

Mendocino City Community Services District (the District) was formed in 1971 under Government
Code Sections 61000 et.seq. to collect and treat wastewater and maintain street lighting for the
unincorporated town of Mendocino. Pursuant to a ballot measure passed in 1985 and the
California Public Contract Code, the District was mandated to seek a permanent solution to the
inadequate sources of water. These solutions include working toward a system of conservation in
conjunction with recycling for irrigation and recharge. In 1990, the District assumed responsibility
for groundwater management as authorized by AB 786. Major sources of revenue for the District
include water and waste water service charges and property taxes.

B. The Reporting Entity

The financial statements consist of the District's proprietary enterprise fund, which consists of the
maintenance, operation and expansion of the water and sewer public utility system. These
services are proprietary in nature and are maintained as an enterprise fund. Enterprise Funds are
used to account for operations (a) that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private
business enterprises, where the intent of the governing body is that the costs of providing goods or
services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through
user charges or (b) where the governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues
earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public
policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes.

C. Basis of Accounting

The proprietary enterprise fund financial statements required by GASB No. 34 are reported using
the “flow of economic resources” measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.
Accordingly, all of the District's assets and liabilities, including capital assets and fong-term
liabilities, are included in the accompanying Statements of Financial Position. The Statement of
Revenues, Expenses, and Net Position presents changes in fund equity. Under the accrual basis
of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned, while expenses are
recognized in the period in which the liability is incurred.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing goods and services and
producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing
operations. The principal operating revenues of the enterprise and internal service funds are
charges to customers for sales and services, including water and wastewater charges.

' Operating expenses for enterprise funds include salaries and employee benefits, maintenance and

operation of systems and facilities, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets.
All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and
expenses. The District’s water and waste water enterprise funds recognize as capital contributions
the entire portion of tap fees, as they intend to recover the costs of the capital investment in the
water and waste water distribution system.

Bond Premiums and Discounts/Issuance Costs for governmental-wide financial statements and
proprietary funds financial statements - issuance costs are recognized during the current period.
Any bond premiums and discounts are capitalized and amortized over the life of the bonds. Bond
proceeds, premiums and discounts are reported as other financing sources in the governmental
fund financial statements.



NOTE 1 -

Mendocino City Community Services District
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

D. Net Position

The proprietary enterprise fund financial statements utilize a net position presentation. Net
position categories are as follows:

+ NetInvestment in Capital Assets - This component of net position consists of capital assets,
net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by any debt outstanding against the
acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets.

+ Restricted Net Position - This component of net position consists of amounts with constraints
placed on net position use by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other
governments or constraints imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation.

* Unrestricted Net Position - This component of net position consists of net position that does
not meet the definition of restricted or net investment in capital assets. This may include
amounts board-designated to be reported as being held for a particular purpose.

The District may fund operations with a combination of cost-reimbursement grants and capital
grants. Thus, both restricted and unrestricted net positions may be available to finance
expenditure. The District’s policy is to first apply restricted resources, followed by unrestricted
resources if necessary.

E. Estimated Budgets

The District adopts a preliminary budget for the following fiscal year, and a final budget for the
year. Budgetary revenue estimates represent original estimates modified for any authorized
adjustments, contingent upon new or additional revenue sources. Budgetary expenditure amounts
represent original appropriations adjusted by budget transfers and authorized appropriation
adjustments made during the year. All budgets are adopted on a non-GAAP basis.

F. Accounts Receivable

The District bills the local residents to cover costs related to groundwater management on a
quarterly basis and commercial customers on a monthly basis. The District is not able to
discontinue water service, as water comes from privately owned wells. If a customer does not
have a valid extraction permit on file, the District may impose a penalty of $100.00 per day.
Management believes all amounts are collectible and, accordingly, there is no provision for
uncollectible accounts reflected herein.

G. Inventories and Prepaid ltems

All inventories are valued at cost based upon physical determinations made at the end of each
year.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid items in the financial statements.

H. Capital Assets

Capital assets more than $5,000 are stated at cost of acquisition. Significant improvements or
betterments to existing assets are capitalized; maintenance and repairs that do not extend the
useful lives of the assets are charged to operations. Costs incurred during the construction phase
of a project, including interest paid, are included in the construction in progress account and upon
completion of the project are transferred to capital assets.

-7-



NOTE 1 -

Mendocino City Community Services District
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

H. Capital Assets (concluded)

Depreciation of capital assets is charged as an expense against operations each year and the
total amount of depreciation taken over the years, accumulated depreciation, is reported on the
Statement of Net Position — Business-type Activities Enterprise Fund as a reduction in the book
value of capital assets. Depreciation is charged as an operating expense on the Statement of
Revenues, Expenses and Net Position - Business-type Activities Enterprise Fund. Depreciation
expense was $297,128 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023.

Property, plant, and equipment of the District are depreciated using the straight line method over
the following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Sewer and Water treatment plant 10-75
Sewer and Water collection system 15-75
Buildings and improvements 10-40
Vehicles, trucks and equipment 5-10

I.  Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash is defined as cash in demand deposit accounts as well as cash on hand. Cash equivalents
are short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and investments so near their maturity that the risk of changes in value due to changes in interest
rates is negligible. These are generally investments with maturity dates within three months of the
acquisition date.

J. Compensated Absences

It is the District’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation benefits.
The liability for unpaid vacation is recorded in the financial statements when the liability is incurred
and vacation is reported as the current portion of such compensated absences. The total amount
of compensated absences payable at June 30, 2023 was $6,228.

Employees accrue vacation benefits up to an accrual maximum of 144 hours after 11 years of
service. Upon termination, retirement, or death of an employee, the District pays any accrued and
unused vacation in a lump-sum payment to the employee or beneficiary in accordance to
applicable law.

K. Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue is recorded to the extent that funds are received ahead of time where it qualifies
for income recognition. Deferred revenue consists primarily of intergovernmental grants received
during the current year for projects to be conducted subsequent to June 30, 2023.

.. Risk Management

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to and destruction
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The District, as a
member of the Golden State Risk Management Authority (GSRMA), has purchased various
insurance policies to manage the potential liabilities that may occur from the previously named
sources. GSRMA's purpose is to arrange and administer programs of self-insured losses and to
purchase excess insurance coverage.



NOTE 1 -

Mendocino City Community Services District
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (concluded)

M. Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

N. Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources
related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the
Mendocino City Community Services District’s California Public Employees’ Retirement System
(CalPERS) plan (Plan) and additions to/deductions from the Plan’s fiduciary net position have
been determined on the same basis as they are reported by CalPERS. For this purpose, benefit
payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

O. Reclassifications

Certain balances at, and for the year ended June 30, 2022, were reclassified to conform with June
30, 2023, balances.

P. Contingencies and Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through the date the financial statements were available to be
issued.

Litigation

The District is involved in litigation incurred in the normal course of conducting District business.
District management believes, based upon consultation with its counsel, that these cases, in the
aggregate, are not expected to result in a material adverse financial impact on the District.

Q. Deferred Qutflows and Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of
resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will
not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The District reports
deferred outflows of resources for its pension plan.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of
resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not
be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The District reports deferred
inflows of resources for its pension plan.



NOTE 2 -

Mendocino City Community Services District
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS

The District maintains a deposit account with Savings Bank of Mendocino County and an account
with the Local Agency Investment Fund.

These funds have been segregated into accounts and at June 30, 2023, the balances were as
follows:

2023
Cash and investments:
Demand accounts $ 383,971
LAIF 101,724
Total $ 485 695

The District's investment policy has been to invest idle cash in demand deposits, time deposits
and the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF). Investments are reported at fair value.

California Law requires banks and savings and loan institutions to pledge government securities
with a market value of 110% of the District's cash on deposit or first trust deed mortgage notes
with a value of 150% of the deposit as collateral for these deposits. Under California Law this
collateral is held in the District's name and places the District ahead of general creditors of the
institution. The District has waived collateral requirements for the portion of deposits covered by
federal depository insurance.

LAIF is part of the Pooled Money Investment Account managed by the California State Treasurer
and funds are invested in accordance with Government Code Sections 16430 and 16480.
Participants in LAIF have the right to withdraw their funds with one day’s notice. At June 30, 2023,
the fair value of LAIF's assets was approximately equal to the District's share as reported above.
Restriction of cash is required by Board resolution or District ordinance to equal required reserves.

Fair Value Hierarchy

GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurements and Application, establishes a fair value
hierarchy consisting of three broad levels: Level 1 inputs consist of quoted prices (unadjusted) for
identical assets and liabilities in active markets that a government can access at the
measurement date, Level 2 inputs consist of inputs other than quoted prices that are observable
for an asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, that can include quoted prices for similar assets
or liabilities in active or inactive markets, or market-corroborated inputs, and Level 3 inputs have
the lowest priority and consist of unobservable inputs for an asset or liability. The District's
holdings in the Local Agency Investment Pool and cash in banks were not subject to the fair value
hierarchy.

-10 -



NOTE 3 -

NOTE 4 -

Mendocino City Community Services District
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets consisted of the following at June 30, 2023 and 2022.

Balance Balance
Business-type Activities 6/30/22 Increase Decrease 6/30/23
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 1,600,000 $ - 9 - $ 1,600,000
Construction in progress 4,226,294 - 4,226,294 -
Total capital assets, not being depr. 5,826,294 - 4,226,294 1.600,000
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Sewer & water facilities and
improvements 4,710,265 4,226,294 - 8,936,559
Equipment and furniture 731,008 - - 731,009
Vehicles 105,157 - - 105,157
Total capital assets, being depreciated 5,546,431 4,226,294 - 9,772,725
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Sewer & water facilities and
improvements 3,095,130 271,741 - 3,366,871
Equipment and furniture 352,575 20,308 - 372,883
Vehicles 59,442 5,079 - 64,521
Total capital assets, being depreciated 3,507,147 297,128 - 3,804,275
Total capital assets being
depreciated — net 2,039,284 3,929,166 - 5,968,450
Capital assets — net $§ 7865578 $3.929.166 $4.226294 §$ 7,568,450

PENSION PLAN

A. General Information About The Pension Plans

Plan Descriptions - All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate
in the District's Miscellaneous Employee Pension Plan, cost-sharing multiple employer defined
benefit pension plan administered by the California Public Employees’ Retirement System
(CalPERS). Benefit provisions under the Plan are established by State statute and Local
Government resolution. CalPERS issues publicly available reports that include a full description of
the pension plan regarding benefit provisions, assumptions and membership information that can
be found on the CalPERS website.

Benefits Provided - CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of
living adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and
beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full time
employment. Members with five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily
reduced benefits. All members are eligible for non-duty disability benefits after 10 years of service.
The death benefit is one of the following: the Basic Death Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or
the Optional Settlement 2W Death Benefit. The cost of living adjustments for the plan are applied
as specified by the Public Employees’ Retirement Law.

- 19 -



Mendocino City Community Services District
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

NOTE 4 - PENSION PLAN (continued)

A. General Information About The Pension Plans (concluded)

The Plan’s provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2023, are summarized as follows:

Miscellaneous

Prior to On or after
Hire date January 1, 2013  January 1, 2013
Benefit formula 2% @ 60 2% @ 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service 5 years service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 60 62
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensations 2.0% 2.0%
Required employee contribution rates 7.0% 6.75%
Required employer contribution rates 8.65% 7.47%

Contributions - Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law (PERL)
requires that the employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual
basis by the actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate.
The total plan contributions are determined through CalPERS’ annual actuarial process. The
actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits
earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued
liability. The District is required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate
and the contribution rate of employees. Employer contribution rates may change if plan contracts
are amended. Payments made by the District to satisfy contribution requirements that are
identified by the pension plan terms as plan member contribution requirements are classified as
plan member contributions.

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the contributions recognized as part of pension expense for
each Plan were as follows:

Miscellaneous

Contributions - employer $54,941

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Quiflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pension

As of June 30, 2023, the District reported net pension liabilities for its proportionate shares of the
net pension liability of the Miscellaneous Plans as follows:

Proportionate
Share of
Net Pension Liability
Miscellaneous $ 514.529

The District's net pension liability for the Plan is measured as the proportionate share of the net
pension liability. The net pension liability of the Plan is measured as of June 30, 2022, and the
total pension liability for the Plan used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2021, rolled forward to June 30, 2022, using standard update
procedures. The District's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the
District's long-term share of contributions to the pension plans relative to the projected
contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined.

The District's proportionate share of the net pension liability for the Plan as of June 30, 2022, was
as follows:

_12.



NOTE 4 -

Mendocino City Community Services District
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

PENSION PLAN (continued)

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources Related to
Pension (continued)

Miscellaneous

Proportion - June 30, 2021 0.01027%
Proportion - June 30, 2022 0.01100%
Change — Increase (Decrease) {0.00073%)

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the District recognized pension expense/(credit) of $47,788.
On June 30, 2023, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pension from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date  § 54,941 $ -
Differences between actual and expected experience 10,333 6,920
Changes in assumptions 52,724 -
Change in employer's proportion 38,263 2,024
Differences between actual contributions vs.
proportionate share of contributions 98 40,696
Net differences between projected and actual earnings
on plan investments 94,248 -
Total $ 250,607 b 49,640

$54,941 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended
June 30, 2024. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pension will be recognized as pension expense as follows:

Year Ended June 30

2024 $ 33,649
2025 32,293
2026 22,439
2027 57,645

Actuarial Assumptions - The June 30, 2021, valuation was rolled forward to determine the June
30, 2022, total pension liability, based on the following actuarial methods and assumptions:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal in accordance with requirements of GASB 68
Actuarial Assumptions:

Discount Rate 6.90%

Inflation 2.30%

Salary increases Varies by Entry Age and Service

Mortality rate table Derived using CalPERS Membership Data for all Funds

Post Retirement Benefit Increase  Contract COLA up to 2.5% until Purchasing Power Protection
Allowance Floor on Purchasing Power Applies.

The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS’ specific data. The table includes 15

years of mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale 90% of scale MP2016. For more
details on this table, please refer to the December 2017 experience study report.

-13-



NOTE 4 -

Mendocino City Community Services District
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

PENSION PLAN (continued)

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources Related to
Pension (continued)

Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability for PERF C was
6.90%. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that
contributions from plan members will be made at the current member contribution rates and that
contributions from employers will be made at statutorily required rates, actuarially determined.
Based on those assumptions, the Plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to
make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term
expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit
payments to determine the total pension liability.

Long-term Expected Rate of Return - The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was determined using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of
expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and
inflation) are developed for each major asset class. In determining the long-term expected rate of
return, CalPERS took into account both shori-term and long-term market return expectations as
well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical returns of all the funds’ asset
classes, expected compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the short-term {first 10
years) and the long-term (11+ years) using a building-block approach.

Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of
benefits was calculated for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the
rounded single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for
cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate
of return was then set equal to the single equivalent rate calculated above and adjusted to account
for assumed administrative expenses.

The expected real rates of return by asset class are as follows:

Real Return Real Return
Asset Class (a) Allocation Years 1-10 (b) Years 11+ (c)
Global equity 50% 4.80% 5.98%
Fixed income 28% 1.00% 2.62%
Inflation assets - 0.77% 1.81%
Private equity 8% 6.30% 7.23%
Real assets 13% 3.75% 4.93%
Liquidity 1% - -0.92%

(@) In the System’s ACFR, Fixed Income is included in Global Debt Securities; Liquidity is included in
Short-term Investments; Inflations Assets are included in both Global Equity Securities and Global
Debt Securities.

{b) An expected inflation of 2.00% used for this period.

(¢) An expected inflation of 2.92% used for this period.

Subsequent Events - There were no subsequent events that would materially affect the results
presented in this disclosure.

Amortization of Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources - Under GASB 68, gains

and losses related to changes in total pension liability and fiduciary net position are recognized in
pension expense systematically over time.

.14 -



NOTE 4 -

Mendocino City Community Services District
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

PENSION PLAN (concluded)

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources Related to
Pension (concluded)

The first amortized amounts are recognized in pension expense for the year the gain or loss
occurs. The remaining amounts are categorized as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions and are to be recognized in future pension expenses. The
amortization period differs depending on the source of the gain or loss:

Net Difference Between Projected and Actual Earnings on Pension Plan Investments - 5-year
straight-line amortization.

All other amounts - Straight-line amortization over the expected average remaining service lifetime
(EARSL) of all members that are provided with benefits (active, inactive, and retired) as of
beginning of the measurement period.

Expected Average Remaining Service Lives (EARSL) - The expected average remaining service
lifetime (EARSL) is calculated by dividing the total future service years by the total number of plan
participants (active, inactive, and retired) in the Public Agency Cost-Sharing Multiple-Employer
Plan (PERF C).

The EARSL for PERF C for the measurement period ending June 30, 2021, is 3.7 years, which
was obtained by dividing the total service years of 561,622 (the sum of remaining service lifetimes
of the active employees) by 150,648 (the total number of participants: active, inactive, and retired)
in PERF C. Inactive employees and retirees have remaining service lifetimes equal to 0. Total
future service is based on the members’ probability of decrementing due to an event other than
receiving a cash refund.

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate
The following presents the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability for the Plan,
calculated using the discount rate for the Plan, as well as what the District's proportionate share of
the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage
point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current rate:

Miscellaneous

1% Decrease 5.90%
Net Pension Liability $809,853
Current Discount Rate 6.90%
Net Pension Liability $514,529
1% Increase 7.90%
Net Pension Liability $271,550

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net
position is available in the separately issued CalPERS financial reports.

Payable to the Pension Plan - At June 30, 2023, the District reported no amounts payable for the
outstanding amount of contributions to the pension plan required for the year then ended.

-15-



NOTE 5 -

Mendocino City Community Services District
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

LONG-TERM DEBT

The following is a summary of changes in long-term debt as of June 30, 2023:

Adjustments
June 30, & June 30,

Direct Borrowings: 2022 Additions  Retirements 2023 Current
2020 — USDA Certificates of

Participation $2,035,500 $ - % 32,000 $2,003,500 $ 32,500
2005 — California Infrastructure

and Economic Development 361,366 - 23,064 338,302 23,770

Total $2.396.868 $ - 3 55.064 $2,341.802 $ 56,270

The District has a note payable with California Infrastructure and Economic Development for a
biosolids drying unit and housing for the unit for $650,000 that is originally dated April 2005, The
note matures August 2034 and has an interest rate of 3.05 percent. Interest payments are made

on August and February 1steach year. Principal payments are made on August 1%t each year.

Principal interest payments on the debt for the succeeding years and thereafier are as follows:

Year ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2024 $ 23,770 $ 10,318 5 34,088
2025 24,495 9,594 34,089
2026 25,242 8,846 34,088
2027 26,012 8,076 34,088
2028 26,805 7,282 34,087
2029 27,623 6,466 34,089
2030 28,465 5,622 34,087
2031 29,333 4,754 34,087
2032 30,228 3,860 34,088
2033 31,150 2,938 34,088
2034 32,100 1,088 34,088
2035 33,079 1.008 34,087
Total $ 338.302 $ 70,752 $ 409,054

The District has a note payable with United States De
November 2019 and matures November 2059.

payments are made annually on November 1st each year.

-16 -

partment of Agriculture that originated
Interest is 2.38 percent. Principal and interest



NOTE 5 -

NOTE 6 -

Mendocino City Community Services District
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

LONG-TERM DEBT (concluded)

Principal and interest payments on the bonds for the succeeding years and thereafter are as
follows:

Year ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2024 $ 32,500 $ 47,583 $ 80,083
2025 33,500 46,811 80,311
2026 34,500 46,016 80,516
2027 35,500 45,196 80,696
2028 36,000 44,353 80,353
2029 37,000 43,498 80,498
2030 38,000 42,619 80,619
2031 39,000 41,717 80,717
2032 40,000 40,791 80,791
2033 41,500 39,841 81,341
2034 42,500 38,855 81,355
2035 43,500 37,846 81,346
2036 44,500 36,813 81,313
2037 46,000 35,756 81,756
2038 47,000 34,663 81,663
2039 48,000 33,547 81,547
2040 49,500 32,407 81,907
2041 51,000 31,231 82,231
2042 52,000 30,020 82,020
2043 53,500 28,785 82,285
2044 55,000 27,514 82,514
2045 56,500 26,208 82,708
2046 58,000 24,866 82,866
2047 59,500 23,489 82,989
2048 61,000 22,076 83,076
2049 62,500 20,627 83,127
2050 64,000 19,143 83,143
2051 66,000 17,623 83,623
2052 67,500 16,055 83,555
2053 69,500 14,452 83,952
2054 71,000 12,801 83,801
2055 73,000 11,115 84,115
2056 75,000 9,381 84,381
2057 77,000 7,600 84,600
2058 79,000 5,771 84,771
2059 81,000 3,895 84,895
2060 83.000 1.971 84,971

Total $ 2,003,500 $ 1042934 § 3046434
PROPERTY TAXES

Property taxes are assessed, collected and distributed by the County of Mendocino in accordance
with legislation. Secured property taxes are attached as an enforceable lien on real property
located in the County of Marin as of March 1. Secured property taxes are levied each November 1
on the assessed value of the real property as of prior March 1. Taxes are due in two equal
installments on December 10 and April 10 following the levy date. Under California law, secured
property taxes are assessed and collected by the counties at up to 1% of assessed value, plus
other increases approved by the voters. The property taxes are pooled and then allocated to the
District based upon complex formulas.

-17 -



NOTE 6 -

Mendocino City Community Services District
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

PROPERTY TAXES (concluded)

Unsecured property taxes are levied throughout the year beginning March 1 on the assessed
value of personal property as of March 1. For unsecured property tax bills issued between March
1 and June 30, the amount is payable by August 31. For unsecured property tax bills issued after
June 30, the amount of the tax is due 30 days after the bill is issued, but no later than February
28/29.

-18 -



l@—«l

"a|ge|lBAR 9WI008(
Asyy se paheidsip aq |jm sieek jeuonippy uonejuswaldwi Jo Jeak 1S| 8} sem {0z JeoA [eosi4 ‘sieak | 1o} UONBLIOJU] MOYS O} Papus)ul S 8|npeyog,

SUON-SUORJWNSSY Ul S3BUByD

auopN - SWis] jjauag Ui sabueyy

F1NAIHOS OL S31ON

%€8'6. VLA %SL VL %81'GL %60°LL %el'EL YAV %99°06 %SC'9L Aungel) uotsuad fejoy 8y Jo
abejueoiad e se uopisod Jau Aseionpy ug|g

%C888L  %O9VEL  %SO'LSL  %60'8IL  %POESL  %OV'E9L  %Z6'9LL  %BEY0L %89 LZZ llolAed safojdwa-paiencd jo ebejusoiad
e se Ajjigel| uoisuad Jau ay} Jo aleys sjeuoodold
LPL'98L § 8GL'82C$ L6S'6VC$ 092'7SC$ S0Z'€9Z$ 9LL'6YT S 9LL6YZ S Z62'e8l § €0LZET $ llolAed eakojdws - paienrog
69Y'1SE$ €L6'L0€$ 820'LLE$ ZBE'/TV$ 1Z8TOV$ 620°€Zv$ LO8 LYY S 200°S6L S 625WLS § Aigel uoisusd jau sy} Jo aieys ejeuoniodoid
%0995°0  %06¥7'0  %09€¥'0  %OLEY'D  %08LY'0  %O0EL¥0  %09LY'0  %0L9E0  %S+00°0 Ajijiqel) uojsuad Jau sy Jo uoiodold

AWliqer uoisuad 1N au) Jo
aleyg sjeuoiodolid ay) Jo 8|npayos

y102 G102 910¢ 2102 81L0¢ 6L0C 0¢0¢ 120e ¢c0C eje(d jusliainses |y

ALITEVYITNOISNId 13N 3HL 40 FHVHS FLVYNOILYOJOYd S.LOMF1SIA IHL 40 I 1Nd3HDS
£«SIB8A 6 1SB7,

€202 ‘0¢ aunp jo sy
L emnpayog J0L181Qg $80IAIBS AJUnUWWoD Al OUIDOPUB)



IONI

"a|qe|leae

awo0oaq Aoy} se peheldsip aq jim sieeA jeuonippy ‘uonejuaweldiul Jo Jesh 1s| By} sem 11,0z Jeak [eosiy ‘siesk o 10} uojeULIOMUl MOYS O] POpUBIUI S| 8INPBYDS,

ejeq diysisquisiyl ,SHIdIED Wol paauag

£9-0G

uoneyur Buipniou; ‘esuadxa Juswiseur ueyd uoisuad Jjosu ‘ygL
80Ines pue abe Ajus Ag seuep

%05°2

suiybiens iesh-g

sieah g

peso|o ‘[joshAed Jo abejusolad jeas

aby Anug

Ateriop

afe yuswaunay

uinjal jo sjel JUSW)SBAU|
sesealoul Alejeg

uonepu

poyiaw uonen|ea 1assy

pousd uonezowe Buuiewey
poulsW uopeziuowy

ojdwex3 sishojdwy yueby pue sibuig

-Sejel UONNgUIUGS SUIUWIS}SP 0F Pesh SUOTAWNSSE PUE SPOUTBH

0202/0€/9

%8y LL %EL 9L %0L°LL %298l %1861 %E8'ET %16°9¢ %89'¢ %18°LC %80°¢C

lyL'98L$ 8S.'827$ LBS'6YZ$ 09Z'WST$ S0Z'€9Z$ 9LL'6hZ $ 9LL'6ye$ T6Z'e8L$ €0L'ZeT$ 0£0'8€Z §

- $ - § - § - § T T TT gy TTTT§ TS T

wev'ze)  (iz'se)  witvw) (Ovely) (1S129)  (805°69) (80z°29)  (c45t¥)  (6z9°05) (1v6%9)

VBY'ZE § LlT8E $ WIL'Wy § 9VEP § LSL'ZS § 60S'6S $ 602°/9 $ €/S'Lv $ 62905 $ LPBHS ¢

4304 21 204 9102 4102 8102 610¢ 020c Leoe [£44 £€¢0c

SNOILNAMYINGD NOISNId 40 I INaIA0S
(SIeaj Ol Jse,

€202 '0¢ aunp jo sy
¢ ®INpayog 10UISIQ $901AI8S AHUNWIWGD AN OUIDOpUB

aiep uonen|ea

-AMNA3HOS OL S31ON

jjoihed aakojduwis-peianco
Jo abejusoled e se suonnguuoy
leadh jeosy sy} Bunnp jjoiked ssAojdws-paianon

(ss80%8) Aousioyep uopNqLILON
SUOHNQIIUOD PBUILLIBISP
Ajletienioe ay) o) uoje|es Ui SUOHNGLILOD
(pauiislep A|jeuemoe)
uoinquoo paJinbas Ajjenjoenuoy
SNOILNEIYLINOD 40 ITNGIAHDS
pUT TS X [BOSI-




ORDINANCE 2023-01
CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE FOR THE MENDOCINO CITY COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

The Political Reform Act (Government Code Section 81000, et seq.) requires state and local
government agencies to adopt and promulgate conflict of interest codes. The Fair Political
Practices Commission has adopted a regulation (2 California Code of Regulations Section 18730)
that contains the terms of a standard conflict of interest code, which can be incorporated by
reference in an agency’s code. After public notice and hearing, the standard code may be
amended by the Fair Political Practices Commission to conform to amendments in the Political
Reform Act. Therefore, the terms of 2 California Code of Regulations Section 18730 and any
amendments to it duly adopted by the Fair Political Practices Commission are hereby
incorporated by reference. This regulation and the attached Appendix [or Appendices],
designating positions and establishing disclosure categories, shall constitute the conflict of
interest code of the Mendocino City Community Services District.

Individuals holding designated positions (all Board members, as well as the District
Superintendent) shall file their statements of economic interests with the District, which will
make the statements available for public inspection and reproduction (Gov. Code Sec. 81008).
All statements will be retained by the District.

This Ordinance was first introduced at a regular meetmg of the Board of Directors on December
18, 2023, and adopted by the Board of D;rectors on : g; N by the following
vote: : S

AYES:
NOES
ABSENT

ATTEST:

Katie Bates, District Secretary Dennak Murphy, Board President



Attachments for Informational Use Only

"An Overview of Conflicts of Interest Under the Political Reform
Act" htms://Www.fsﬁm;.Ca.gov/con‘a‘,eﬂt/’dam;‘”?ﬁpg/’NS~
Documents/TAD/Campai n%ZODccumentS/CGnﬂicts%ZOGuide%ZO?_OZZ.pdf

Form 700 https://www.fppc.ca.gov/content/déhﬁ/fpmc/NS—
DGCL%mentS/TAD/FOf‘m%ZO?'OG/ZOZZQ?;/FQfm~‘Z7OO 2022.0df




December 12, 2023
MEMO:

TO: MCCSD Board of Directors
FROM: Dennak Murphy, Chair

RE: Proposed Revised Governance Guidelines

Director Ishvi Aum and |, as members of the Governance Guidelines Review Ad-Hoc committee, met with
Superintendent Ryan Rhoades and MCCSD Office Manager Katie Bates in November to discuss
potential revisions to the MCCSD Governance Guidelines.

Attached is the red-lined proposed revision of the Governance Guidelines.
There are several things to note in bringing this to the full Board for consideration.

1. Careful review of this document by the Board and staff is critical to ensure the changes meet the
District’s needs.

2. The red-lined version of the Guidelines shows all changes proposed as well as all changes and
deletions from the current version which was adopted in 2008.

3. The proposed version includes comments, suggested revisions from current and former staff, myself,
and perhaps others. Given we had at least three different documents at different times with suggested
edits from at least three different individuals, the current red-lined version references only my edits which
include a good-faith effort to include prior revisions from others.

4. Director Aum, as a member of the ad-hoc committee to revise the Governance Guidelines, made two
specific recommendations that | have not spelled out in the attached document. They are:

o To provide for the removal of the President by majority vote. In review of governance documents
from other Special Districts on the Mendocino LAFCO website, all agencies provide for the
election of the Board President by majority vote for one or two year terms. None, except Elk
CSD, provide for the removal of the President by majority vote.

e To provide a process to ensure proposed or requested agenda items by Directors that were not
included by the President in a particular meeting agenda, be included in subsequent agendas. In
review of governance documents from many other Special Districts in Mendocino County as
listed on the LAFCO website, the vast majority of Fire, Water and Wastewater, Community and
other Districts do not mention how agendas are set. Those that do, state that the President, and
in one case, the senior staff person set the agenda.

Given the above, | am proposing some minor changes to agenda setting that encourage Board
members to suggest agenda items and write out our practice of agenda review by the full

Board. Regarding removal of the President, we can discuss that during the full Board discussion and
the Board can decide.

5. I'reviewed most of the governance policies from the many agencies overseen by Mendocino LAFCO,
it may be useful at some future point to conduct a systematic review of District policies and procedures
and re-organize them into one document as many agencies have done. There are many examples that
could be models for our own.

Dennak



Mendocino City Community Services District Board of Directors

Governance Guidelines

1/27/2020

pdossd  Blfog

1/27/2020



Table of Contents

Preamble. ... 3

Formation and Powers of Mendocino City Community Services District ... 31.
Mission of the BOArd........ccccriiuriiieiieece oo 32.
Actions that May De TaKEN w.c.c.ooiuiviuiiiieiieee oo 43
Principles of Negotiation and CommUnication. .............ooovveeoeoeeeooeoeoeoeooooo 4 4,
Size of the Board .....cocoeoevevecvoeieieeeee. e ettt s 45.
Conduct and Organization of the Board of Directors.........oeeveeerereeeeooooeeooe. 56.
Selection of Agenda Items for Board Meetings .............ooevoveereeveeerorereeeoseoeeoo 57.
Board Materials Distributed in AdVANCE........oevvvieeeeeeee oo 58.
Public NOtice 0f MEEHINES .. c.vucviveirieieiiete et e e e 509.
Mailed NOtice Of MEEHING ..vvuveieieinieiieieises et ee oo 6 10.
Board Meetings Open to the PUbIiC......oiiviiiieeeee oo, 611.
Closed Sessions of the Board.........co.oouoviveveceoceieeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 6 12.
Board PartiCipation.............ccoviiiiuiieeeece e e 6 13.
PUBLC TESHMONY .....oviiiiiiieteieeeet et 6 14.
Board COmMMITIEES. .........cuiiiiiiiiirieiee e e e e 6 15.
BOAIA ACCESS.....oiviieiiiiiiie et e et 7 16.
Election of DIF€CtOrS. .....cccviiiiiiiieeeccee et 717.
Filling of VaCANCIES ....ucviviiiiiicie e 8 18.
Conflict of INtrest COAC. w.vuiuiueiiirirriiiieie oot 8 19.
Continuing EAUCAIION. ........eueviiiiiiiietei et e 8 20.
T LAMIES. oo 821.
Annual Board EValUations.......c.oeeoeiieiiicieee e 8 22.
At Termination of DULIES......c.eiiirivirreieeiee e, 8 23.
Publication of GUIAEINES.........ooviuiniirieieecceee oo 8 24.
Changes 10 GUIACINES.....c.ovvriieereiiie e, 825

APPENAIX Attt e 9



MCCSD Governance Guidelines

Preamble

The purpose of these Governance Guidelines for-the MCCSD Board of Directors is to present a general
overview of policies and procedures to assist the Board Members in carrying out their duties. The laws
governing community services districts contain additional requirements. The Guidelines are not to be
interpreted in a manner that is inconsistent with the law.

1. Formation and Powers of Mendocino City Community Services District

The purpose of the Mendocino City Community Services District is to provide sewer treatment services,
groundwater management, and street lighting. The MCCSD, established July 19, 1971, provides services
as approved by the electorate under Community Services District Law, Title 6, Division 3 of the
Government Code of California, Section 61000 et seq.

The original governing powers of the District were wastewater treatment and street i ghting. In 1987, the
District received groundwater management authority within its boundaries (California Water Code
Section 10700 ~ 10717). The current groundwater withdrawal program limits groundwater extraction to
prevent aquifer overdraft.

2. Mission of the Board

The Board of Directors of the Mendocino City Community Services District has the ultimate
responsibility for the well being of the District. This includes the monitoring and support of the District in
providing services to the public, including sewer, groundwater management, and street lighting.

Duties and Responsibilities of the Board of Directors include:

a) Select, evaluate the performance, compensate and plan for the succession of the District Superintendent
and staff. ‘

b) Advise and counsel the Superintendent of the District in managing the affairs of the District, The
President of the Board is responsible for day-to-day coordination with the District Superintendent,
representing the board in such matters. However, the setting of policy and other responsibilities of the
Board shall be in accordance with the provisions of these Governance guidelines.

) Identify appropriate board candidates, nominate and evaluate the performance and plan for
succession of directors.

d) Serve as stewards of the assets of the District and ensure that proper internal controls are in place.

¢) Review and approve/disapprove agreements and contracts with third parties, including professional
service agreements and consulting contracts.

) Review and approve major District strategies and financial objectives.



g Ensure that the District has effective budgets and plans in place on or before July 1 of each year,
and monitor the District's performance against these budgets and plans.

h) Approve the capital spending plan of the District and ensure that it is consistent with District
financial resources.

i) Review the adequacy of systems for compliance with all applicable laws, regulations and
standards of appropriate behavior.

3. Actions that May be Taken

A majority of the total membership of the board of directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction
of business (a minimum of three (3) board members).

The responsibilities of the Board of Directors include the following:
a) The Board of Directors shall act only by ordinance, resolution, or motion.

b) Except as otherwise specifically provided by law. a majority vote of the total membership of the
board of directors is required for the Board of Directors to take action.

c) The minutes of the Board of Directors shall record the aye and no votes taken by the members of
the Board of Directors for the passage of all ordinances, resolutions and motions, except if unanimous and
so stated.

d) The Board of Directors shall keep a record of all its actions, including financial transactions.
e) The Board of Directors shall adopt rules or bylaws for its proceedings.
f The Board of Directors shall adopt policies for the operation of the district, including, but not

limited to, administrative policies, fiscal policies, personnel policies and the purchasing policies required.
4. Principles of Negotiation and Communication

Members of the Board will, from time to time, engage in negotiation and communication with developers,
consultants, government agencies and others having substantial business dealings with the District. It is
the policy of the Board that, to the extent reasonable and practical, a second Board member should be
present for such dealings.

While routine filings and correspondence with government agencies are normally handled by the District
Superintendent and/or his/her designated individual. matters of significant impact on the District shall be
handled by the Board of Directors, working with the District Superintendent.

5. Size of the Board

The Board of Directors shall consist of 5 members. elected by the public and/or appointed by the Board
(in case of vacancies.)



6. Conduct and Organization of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors shall organize and conduct its business in accordance with the Community
Services District Law, the Brown Act, the Public Records Act and the Political Reform Act of the State of
California, and in accordance with State and federal law.

The President of the Board will chair the Board meetings. In the President’s absence, the Vice President
of the Board will chair the Board meetings. In the Vice President’s absence, the directors present at the
meeting shall elect a chairman for the meeting.

The President and Vice-President of the Board shall be elected by the Board members at the December
Board meeting, and shall serve for a period of one year.

7. Selection of Agenda Items for Board Meetings

The President of the Board will establish the agenda for each Board meeting after consultation with the
District Superintendent. Other directors are encouraged to suggest the inclusion of items on the agenda.
Agenda items may include reports from the District Superintendent, committee reports, expenditure
approvals, discussion items and action items as well as other business that may come before the Board.

In order for the Board to hold discussion and/or take action on any item, it must have been listed on the
Agenda (with minor exceptions) and the public must have opportunity for comment. The minor
exceptions include brief answers to questions posed by the public, asking questions of staff for
clarification, brief announcements or reports on a Director’s activities, asking staff to report back on an
item at a future meeting, or directing staff to place a matter of business on a future agenda.

8. Board Materials Distributed in Advance

Board materials are normally distributed in advance of each meeting, to allow time for review and
assessment so that the Board meeting time may be conserved for discussions focused on questions that
the Board has about the material. The Board President will make every effort to see that the material is
distributed in advance, and that it is presented in an efficient and effective format.

9. Public Notice of Meetings

Public Notice must be given for meetings of the Board. The advance notice time depends on the type of
meeting.

For Regular Board Meetings. A meeting Notice, including Agenda, must be posted in three conspicuous
public places, at least 72 hours prior to the meeting.

For Special Board Meetings. Twenty-four hour notice must be given to the Board members and the
public, including a brief general description of the matters to be considered or discussed.

For Emergency Board Meetings. One hour notice in case of a dire emergency.




10. Mailed Notice of Meeting

The District shall give mailed notice of meetings in advance of the meeting to any person who has filed a
written request for notification. Written requests for notice are valid for one year, and the District may
establish a reasonable annual fee for sending the notices by mail.

11. Board Meetings Open to the Public

Board meetings will normally be held in facilities located in the District that allow sufficient space for
public attendance.

12. Closed Sessions of the Board

Closed sessions of the Board may be held, but notice of the subject must be published. Prior to each
closed session, the President must announce the subject to be considered. If final action is taken in closed
session, the Board generally must report the action at the conclusion of the session. Minutes will be kept
for closed sessions (Government Code Section 54957.2).

Closed sessions may be held for any purpose specified in the Brown Act, Government Code 54956.7-
54957.10, including employee matters, public security, pending or threatened litigation, attorney client
privilege, labor negotiations, and real property negotiations.

13. Board Participation

Directors are expected to prepare for, attend and actively participate in all Board and applicable
Committee meetings.

14. Public Testimony

The Public may comment on agenda items during consideration by the Board as called for by the
President of the meeting. In addition, time must be set aside for public comment on any other matters
under the Board’s jurisdiction, but not on a meeting agenda.

15. Board Committees

The Board may, from time to time, form committees of the Board to allow more focused work in specific
areas on interest. These committees may be standing. special advisory and ad hoc committees. The
District has the following advisory committees:

(1) Plant Operations—this committee is charged with reviewing equipment modifications and treatment
plant and collection system operation and maintenance issues.

(2) Personnel and Management—this committee is responsible for administering employvee policies,
benefits. accident prevention and safetv. and policies and procedures regarding harassment.

(3) Finance Committee

this committee is responsible to oversee the finances of the District, and may
include working with the District Superintendent in creating annual budgets and other financial plans.



(4) Groundwater Management—in Mendocino, the groundwater resource is managed by the MCCSD to
avert aquifer overdraft. The Groundwater Management Committee has oversight of issues affecting the
Groundwater Management Program, the Water Conservation Program, the Groundwater Monitoring
Program, the Data Management Program, the District’s Water Reclamation Program, and the Water
Shortage Contingency Program.

(5) Street Lighting—this committee supervises the town’s street lighting system.

From time to time the Board may establish standing, advisory, and ad hoc committees as may be
necessary to carry out its responsibilities.

All committees are committees of the Board, must have at least one board member on the committee and
must seek Board approval for actions to be taken on behalf of the Board, including the expenditure of
funds. A committee may be appointed consisting of only Board members. Committee members must be
Board members or other residents of Mendocino City Community Services District.

Committee chairpersons shall present a report, in person or written, at a meeting of the Board of Directors
of the District following a committee meeting,.

16. Board Access

Directors will have full access to the District’s management, employees and principal advisers, including
its auditors and legal counsel, and to District information that they believe is necessary to fulfill their
obligations as directors. Directors will use judgment to ensure that such contact is not distracting to the
business or operations of the District. Any contact which will result in billings to the District will first be
coordinated with the President of the Board. Such coordination will include identification of the account
from which funds will be used to pay the billing(s).

There may be occasions when an outside advisor is retained directly by the Board in connection with a
particular matter. The Board and/or its Committees may retain outside experts and advisors at the
District’s expense to the extent they consider it necessary and appropriate under the circumstances.
Committees will first coordinate with the Board prior to such retention. Such coordination will include
identification of the account from which funds will be used to pay the billing(s).

17. Election of Directors.

Directors shall be elected in accordance with the California Elections Code, Sections 10500-10556 and
Government Code 61042-61043. Directors elected shall hold office for a term of 4 (four) years or until
their successor qualifies and takes office. Directors take office at noon on the first Friday in December
following their election. Directors serve staggered terms.

125 days prior to the election. the district secretary will file a notice with the county elections official.
Forms for declaration of candidacy shall first be available from the counties elections official on the 113

day prior to the election and shall be filed not later than 5 p.m. on the 88 day prior to the election, in the
office of the county elections official. The full procedure is contained in the California Elections Code.



18. Filling of Vacancies

Should a Director no longer be able or willing to serve the remainder of his/her elected term, the Board
shall appoint a successor member from applicants for the position as provided under Section 1780 of the
Government Code, to serve out the remainder of the term, unless there are more than 2 years left of the
original term of office, in which case the appointed director shall serve until the next General Election.

19. Conflict of Interest Code.

The Board of Directors reviews the Conflict of Interest Code for the Mendocino City Community
Services District, Ordinance 91-2, biennially. Each director shall be required annually to file a Form 700
— Statement of Economics Interests — with the County.

20. Continuing Education

As required under the Community Services District Law, the District will provide for continuing
education for the Board members, arranging for Directors to attend State qualified education programs for
Special District Directors if required.

21. Term Limits

The Board does not believe it should establish term limits for directors. While such limits might
contribute fresh ideas to the Board, they have the disadvantage of losing the contribution of directors who
have developed, over a period of time, insight into the future direction and operations of the District.

22. Annual Board Evaluations

Each director will evaluate the performance of the Board annually utilizing an approved, pre-determined
process.

23. At Termination of Duties

Whenever a Board member of the District leaves his/her position as a board member, through expiration
of the tour of service or by voluntary action, he/she shall return all property of the District to the Board
President, to including keys, manuals, official correspondence, and other publications that belong in the
District Archives.

24. Publication of Guidelines
The District shall make them available to Directors, employees and members of the public.
25. Changes to Guidelines

These Governance Guidelines may be changed by majority vote of the Board of Directors, taken at a
public meeting of the Board, wherein members of the public are allowed comment on proposed changes.



APPENDIX A: LATENT POWERS OF SPECIAL DISTRICTS

Per PART 3. Chapter 1. of the Code, Section 61100 stipulates that within its boundaries, a district may do
any of the following:

a) Supply water for any beneficial uses, in the same manner as a municipal water district. b) Collect, treat
or dispose of sewage, wastewater, recycled water and storm water in the same manner as a sanitary
District.

¢) Collect, transfer and dispose of solid waste and provide solid waste handling services including but not
limited to source reduction, recycling, composting activities, etc.

d) Provide fire protection services, rescue services, hazardous material emergency response services and
ambulance services.

e) Acquire, construct, improve, maintain and operate recreation facilities including but not limited to
parks and open space.

f) Organize, promote, conduct and advertise programs of community recreation.
g) Acquire construct, improve, maintain and operate street lighting and landscaping on public property.

h) Provide for the surveillance, prevention, abatement and control of vectors and vector borne diseases in
the same manner as a mosquito abatement and vector Control District,

1) Provide police protection and law enforcement services by establishing and operating a police
department that employs peace officers.

J) Provide security services including but not limited to burglar and fire alarm services to protect lives and
property.

k) Provide library services in the same manner as a library district formed pursuant to either Chapter 8 or
Chapter 9 of the education code.

1) Acquire, construct, improve and maintain streets, roads, right of ways. bridges, culverts, drains, curbs,
gutters, sidewalks and any incidental works.

m) Convert existing overhead electric and communications facilities with the consent of the public agency
or public utility that owns the facilities to underground locations.

n) Provide emergency medical services pursuant to the emergency medical services system and the pre-
hospital emergency medical care personnel act.

0} Provide and maintain public airports and landing places for aerial traffic.
p) Provide transportation services.

q) Abate graffiti.



r) Plan, design, construct, improve, maintain and operate flood protection facilities.

s) Acquire, construct, improve, maintain and operate community facilities including but not limited to
community centers, libraries, theaters, museums, cultural facilities and childeare facilities.

t) Abate weeds and rubbish pursuant to part 5 of the health and safety code.

u) Acquire, construct, improve, maintain and operate hydroelectric power generation facilities and
transmission lines.

V) Acquire, construct, improve, maintain and operate television translator facilities.

W) Remove snow from public streets, roads, easements and rights of way.

x) Provide animal control services pursuant to section 30501 of the F ood and Agricultural code.
y) Control, abate and eradicate pests in the same manner as a pest abatement district.

z) Construct, maintain and operate mailboxes on the District property or rights of way.,

aa) Provide mail delivery service under contract to the United States Postal Service.

bb) Operate, improve and maintain cemeteries and provide internment services.

c¢) Finance the operations of area Planning Commissions formed pursuant to section 65101.
dd) Finance the operations of municipal advisory councils formed pursuant to section 31010,

ee) Acquire, own, improve, maintain and operate land within or without the District for Habitat
Mitigation or other environmental protection purposes to mitigate the effects of projects undertaken by
the District.

Per Section 61106: a) If the Board of Directors desires to exercise a latent power, the District shall first
receive the approval of the Local Agency Formation Commission, pursuant to article 1.5 (commencing
with section 56824.10) of Chapter 5 of part 3 of Division 3. b) After receiving the approval of the Local
Agency Formation Commission, the board of directors may, by ordnance, order the exercise of that
power.

10



Mendocino City Community Services District Board of Directors | Formatted: Centered

(MCCSD)

Governance Guidelines

Revised an

#=




Table of Contents

Preamble... s
Formation and Powers of Mendocino City Community Services District
MisSion OF the BOAIT. ..o sttt ess oo

Actions that May Be TaKEN ...ttt res e e :
Principles of Negotiation and Communication...........o..eeveeveroeee oo

Size of the Board
Conduct and Organization of the Board of Directo
Selection of Agenda ltems for Board Meetings
Board Materials Distributed in AQVANCE.......o.o.ov oo 5
Public Notice of Meetings...
Mailed Notice of Meeting ...
Board Meetings Open to the Public
Closed Sessions of the Board
Board PartiCipation. ... e 643+
Public Testimony..
Board Committees..
-+ Board Access. ..
Election of Directors.
FIHNG 0 VACANCIES ..ottt §
Conflict 0f INErest COUC. vttt e ees e eee e er e 818
Continuing Education
Term Limits.coooenen..
Annual Board Evaluations

e { Formatted: Indent: Left: 0", First fine: 0"

5]




MCCSD Governance Guidelines

Preamble

The purpose of these Governance Guidelines for the MCCSD Board of Directors is to present a general
overview of policies and procedures to assist the Board Members in carrying out their duties, The laws
governing community services districts contain additional requirements.  The Guidelines are not to be
interpreted in a manner that is inconsistent with the law.

1. Formation and Powers of Mendocino City Community Services District

The purpose of the Mendocino City Community Services District is to provide sewer treatment services,
groundwater management, and street lighting. The MCCSD, established July 19, 1971, provides services
as approved by the electorate under Community Services District Law, Title 6, Division 3 of the
Government Code of California, Section 61000 ¢t seq.

The original governing powers of the £ 1CCSD were wastewater treatment and street lighting. In
1987. the District received groundsater management authority within its boundaries (California Water
Code Section 10700 - 10717). The current groundwater s+ CILProgram s
groundwater extraction to prevent aquifer overdraft.

2, Mission of the Board
The Board of Directors of the Mendocino City Community Services District has the ultimate responsibility
for the well being of the District, This includes the monitoring and support of the District in providing

services to the public, including sewer, groundwater management, and street lighting,

Duties and Responsibilities of the Board of Directors include:

a) Select, evaluate the performance, compensate and plan for the succession of the District
Superintendent

b) Advise and counsel the Superintendent of the District in managing the affairs of the District. The
President of the Board is responsible for day-to-day coordination with the District Superintendent,
representing the board in such matters.  However, the setting of policy and other responsibilitics
of the Board shall be in accordance with the provisions of these Governance guidelines.

¢} Identify appropriate board candidates, nominate and evaluate the performance and plan for
succession of directors.

d) Serve as stewards of the assets of the District and ensure that proper internal controls are in place.

e} Review and approve/disapprove agreements and contracts with third parties. including professional
service agreements and consulting contracts.

£ Review and approve major District strategives and financial objectives.

(18]




g) Ensure that the District has effective budgets and plans in place on or before July 1 of each year,
and monitor the District's performance against these budgets and plans.

h) Approve the capital spending plan of the District and ensure that it is consistent with District
financial resources,

i) Review the adequacy of systems for compliance with all applicable laws, regulations, and standards
of appropriate behavior.

3. Actions that May be Taken

A majority of the total membership of the board of directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of
business (a minimum of three (3) board members).

The responsibilities of the Board of Directors include the following:
a) The Board of Directors shall act only by ordinance, resolution, or motion.

b) Except as otherwise specifically provided by law, a majority vote of the total membership of the
board of directors is required for the Board of Directors to take action.

¢} The minutes of the Board of Directors shall record the aye and no votes taken by the members of
the Board of Directors for the passage of all ordinances, resolutions and motions. except if
unanimous and so stated.

d) The Board of Directors shall keep a record of all its actions, including financial transactions.
¢) The Board of Directors shall review and update these suidelines as necded ad

f) The Board of Directors shall adopt policies for the operation of the district, includi ing, but not
i and i

limited 1o, administrative policies, fiscal policies, personnel policie
purchasing policies-

4. Principles of Authoritv, Negotiation, and Communication

Members of the Board will. from time (o time, engage in ncnmiation and cwnmunication with |

business dealings with lm District. Il is the pohu ()flhc Board th‘lt 0 lh\. extent rmsondhlc ami )ramml
a second Board member should be present for such dealings.




While routine filings and correspondence with government agencies are normally handled by the District
Superintendent and/or his/her designated individual. matiers of significant impact on the District shall be
handled by the Board of Directors—wasis Bistriet-Superintendeont

Sehyplre P
[iatae sy HHPSFEREH

5. Size of the Board

The Board of Directors shall consist of 3 members, elected by the public and/or appointed by the Board
¢in case of vacancies.+

6. Conduct and Organization of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors shall organize and conduct its business in accordance with the Community Services
District Law, the Brown Act, the Public Records Act and the Political Reform Act of the State of California,
and in accordance with State and federal law.

The President of the Board will chair the Board meetings. In the President’s absence, the Vice President of
the Board will chair the Board meetings. In the Vice President’s absence, the directors present at the meeting
shall elect a shaissnan-cha on for the meeting.

The President and Vice-President of the Board shall be elected by the Board members at the December
Board meeting: and shall serve for a period of one vear,

7. Selection of Agenda Items and Scheduling for Board Meetings

The President of the Board will establish the agenda for cach Board meeting after consultation with the
District Superintendent. Other directors are encouraged to suggest the inclusion of items on the agenda.

%, pnedenoifoans veena temeaTis ot wgaves e Seoneny sl

Pyis o siatarclans

ard that drodt seenda endent {or

af least bwo dovs WInDOrs may sueoest

AR SR b M RN

In order for the Board to hold discussion and/or take action on any item, it must have been listed on the
Agenda (with minor exceptions) and the public must have opportunity for comment. The minor exceptions
inctude brief answers to questions posed by the public, asking questions of staff for clarification, brief’
announcements or reports on a Director’s activities, asking staff to report back on an item at a futre
meeting, or | : o place a matter of business on a future agenda.

roon

fast Mondav of eadd

WCHnNEs

8. Board Materials Distributed in Advance

Board materials are normally distributed in advance of each meeting, 10 ailow time for review and

assessment so that the Board meeting time may be conserved for discussions focused on questions that the

>

i Commented [DM1]: Director Aum has requested that an

additional provision be added here to allow for the removal
by majority vote of the President during their yvearly term,
This issue will be discussed during our December 18th board
meeting,

Commented [DM2]: Director Aum requested that a
provision be added that provides: “If a Board member has
requested an item to be put on the agenda and it is rejected
by the President for reasons that the Board member feels is
inapprepriate, at the Board meeting where that item was not
added 10 the agenda. the requesting Board member can,
during “Matters for Board members™ agenda portion, move
1o add that ftem to the next Board meeting, I that motion
receives a second from at least one other Board member, it
will be added to the agenda of the next meeting.” This
suggestion will be diseussed during the review of this item at
the 127182023 meeting

!

|

|
}




Board has about the material. The Board President will make every effort to see that the material is
distributed in advance, and that it is presented in an efficient and effective format,

9. Public Notice of Meetings

Public Notice must be given for meetings of the Board. The advance notice time depends on the type of
meeting,

For Regular Board Meetings. A meeting Notic

including Agenda, must be posted in th : [ Formatted: Underline

public places and nosted on the District’s websi

= at least 72 hours prior to the mecting.

For Special Board Meetings. Twenty-four hour notice must be given to the Board members and the public,
including a brief general description of the matters to be considered or discussed.

For Emergency Board Meetings. One hour notice in case of a dire emergency.

{ Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left: -0.01", Hanging:
0.01", Space After: 11.5 pt, Line spacing: Multiple 1.12
10. Mailed Notice of Meeting Ll

The District shall give mailed or i notice of meetings in advance of the meeting to any pcrson who
has filed a written request f(n notification. \\ ritten requests for nouu are \*ahd for i e

”i( TSt b rengs

annual fee for sending the notices by mail.

11. Board Meetings Open to the Public

Board meetings will normally be held in facilities located in the District that allow sufficient space for
public attendance.

12. Closed Sessions of the Board

. Board may but notice of the subject must be

published
considered. If final action is taken in closed session, the Board generafly must report the action at the
conclusion of the session. Minutes will be kept for closed sessions (Government Code Section 34957.2).

Closed sessions may be held for any purpose xpw:frcci in Ihc, Brm\n \w (Jo\unmuutnd

234937
attorney client privilege, labor nugmmuonm

i . R .

. 1 Commented [DM31: Section 34937 holds all regulations
and real [)I‘Opu'l\ nuzutmlmna. concerning closed sessions and may be used rather than

. listing subsections.

13. Board Participation |

Directors are expected to
applicable Committee meetings.

prepare for, attend and actively participate in all Board and

qn




14. Public Testimony

The Public may comment on agenda items during consideration by the Board as called for by the President
of the meeting. [n addition, time must be set aside for public comment on any other matters under the
Board’s jurisdiction, but not on a meeting agenda. Public comiment or expression shall cenerally be Tnited
te three (3) minutes per avenda iten,

15. Board Committees

The Board may, from time to time, form committees of the Board to allow more focused work in specific
areas on ¢ or_interest. These cominittees may be standing, special advisory and ad hoc committees.

p
Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left: -0", No bullets or
| numbering

a3 one v

handle ongoing ope rat;um d policies »'a-!a‘ied 3 o
meetings are public and sub t o é%’se Brown Act's notice angd post
comm H ees must have no more oard i

ancimo

hoc commitices are ng

| Formatted: Font: Bold

as the commitiee is cor
commitiess must have a de

{ Formatted: No bullets or numbering

L -

o 1

éwvbg new programs, The

:?eczai mwsaw commx%‘:eew { Formatted: Font: Bold

ish

¢ IS 1

und policies and procedures regarding ¢

4 harassment.




(3) Finance Committee—this committee is responsible to oversee the finances of the District, and may
include working with the District Superintendent in creating annual budgets and other financial plans,
setting rates, developmg fivancial policies and controls and an annual audin

(4) Groundwater Management (. ominitice—in Mendocino, the groundwater resource is managed by the
MCCSD to avert aquifer overdraft. The Groundwater Management Committee has oversight of issues
affecting the Groundwater Management Program, the Water Conservation Program, the Groundwater
Monitoring Program, the Data Management Program, the District’s Water Reclamation P rogram, and

the Water Shortage Contingency Program.

1 Street lighting—this commiltee supervises the town’s street 1i t lighting system.

E46) Safely

and

s commitiee works o ensur nodicies and protocols ar

This_ineludes periodic review o Cdederal, state and

reguireents as well gs roviewing on the ioh ace

From time to time the Board may establish, by nujority voie. ~additional standing, advisory, and ad hoc
committees as may be necessary to carry out its responsibilitie

All committees are commitices of the Board, must have at least one board member on the commitice and
must seek Board approval for actions to be taken on behalf of the Board mdudmg the expenditure of funds.
A committee may be appointed consisting of only Board members. dvisory Committee members
must be Board members or other rumdunls md/or properly owners wizhm theet Me nduun()( ity Community
Services District. The vill decide a process o anpeint community me

Advisory

as needed, a report, in person or writien, at a meeting of the Board of
Directors of the District following a committee maumg.

16. Board Access

Sunenn

—em )l()\'tus and prmupal dd\ isers, mdudmo its dudnors and legal Lcumd, and to Dlsln(,l
information that they believe is necessary 10 fulfill their obligations as dmuurs Dlrcclor\ \\11

the Prosiden

- which will result in billings
Such coordination will include
identification of the account from which funds will be used to pay the billing(s).

Any contact
[o thc Dlsum will first be coordinated with the President of t

full Board,

he Board.

There may be occasions when an outside advisor is retained directly by the Board in connection with
particular matter. The Board and/or its Committees may retain outside experts and advisors at the Dlsmct S
expense o the extent they consider it necessary and appropriate under the circumstances. Committees will
first coordinate with the Board prior 1o such retention. Such coordination will include
identification of the account from which funds will be used to pay the billing(s).

Sl

es

b

17. Election of Directors.




Directors shall be elected in accordance with the California Elections Code, Sections 10500-10556 and
Government Code 61042-61043. Directors clected shall hold office for a term of 4 (four) years or until their
successor qualifies and takes office. Directors take office at noon on the first Friday in December following
their election. Directors serve staggered terms.

i

Pursuant o Election Code Seetion 1303(by and 10404, Flection Dav s held on the first Tuesday afier the first

Monday in Movember of cach even-numbered vewr and the election shall be consolidated with all other elections
held throushout the territory on that day,

18. Filling of Vacancies

Should a Dircctor no longer be able or willing to serve the remainder of his/her elected term, the Board shall
appoint a successor swember- 7_from applicants for the position as provided under Section 1780 of
the Government Code, to serve out the remainder of the term, unless there are more than 2 years left of the
original term of office, in which case the appointed director shall serve until the next General Election.

Gov, Code Seon

1780-1782 sovern the process used Tor apnointment of vacant Board of Direcior seas. The

o

MUCST Board of

Drireetors has 60 davs 1o anpoeint s i

rrnst Hve s he District boundary and be s

seriod, th

19. Conflict of Interest Code. « 1 Formatted: Indent: Left: 07, First line: 07 !

The Board of Dmuozs reviews the Conflict of Interest Code for the Mendocino City Community Services
District, Ordinance 2& biennially. Fach duutm S mll be required annually to file a Form 700
- Statement of Economics Interests ~ with the h ; County,

20. Continuing Education

As required under the Community Services District Law, the District will provide for continuing education for th Formatted: Indent: Left: 07, Right: -0.5", Space After: |
Board members, arranging iox Directors to dlluld State qualified educalmn pmvmnh for Spuud District Directoy 10 pt. Line spacing: Multiple 1.15 1. Dot adjust space
if required. S ; ; i between Latin and Asian text, Don't adjust space
between Asian text and numbers




21. Term Limits

The Board bas dees-not believe-it-shauld-established term limits for directors. While such limits might
contribute frcsh xdcas to 1hc Board, they have the disadvantage of losing the contribution of directors who

have developed, over a period of time, insight into the future direction and operations of the District,

22. Annual Board Evaluations

Each director will evaluate the performance of the Board annually utilizing an approved, pre-determined
process. |

23. At Termination of Duties

Whenever a Board member of the District leaves his/her position as a board member, through expiration of
the tour of service or by voluntary action, he/she shall return all property of the District (o the BZoasd
Hresidest—te lent including keys, manuals, official correspondence, and other publications that
belong in the District Archives.

24. Publication of Guidelines

The District shall make

available to Directors, employees and members of the public.
25. Changes to Guidelines

These Governance Guidelines may be changed by majority vote of the Board of Directors, taken at a public
meeting of the Board, wherein members of the public are allowed comment on proposed changes.

fg Commented [DM4]: Needs to be developed










10.

Notice to Submitting Firms

Qualification Submittals for the RFQ must be submitted electronically to Ryan Rhoades,
Mendocino City Community Services District Superintendent at: meesd@mcn.orgas a
single PDF file. Submittals should include “MCCSD Legal Services Proposal” in the subject
line. The total pages including cover letter but excluding resumes, must not exceed 15
pages. Direct and concise language is appreciated.

All qualification submittals must be received by 400pm on *INSERT DATE*.
A “firm” or “firms” as referred to herein is deﬁned 'a‘s“a‘iaw firm or solo practitioner.

Responding firms may submit quaiiﬁcations“fm some or aH:o’f the legal services
described. The cover letter must deta:l Wthh services are proposed

To receive updates or amendments to the RFQ, register your mterest by email to
mecsd@men.org . Include ”MCCSD Legal Services RFQ Interest" in the subject line.

If you have questions, contact mccsd@mcn org via emall by *INSERT DATE*. Inquiries
should be made to Supermtendent Ryan Rhoades or District Secretary, Katie Bates.
Inquiries should not be made to any other mdxvxdual emp!oyee of MCCSD, or Board
member of MCCSD. Responses to questtons comments and amendments will be sent by
email to each respondent that has reg:stered their mterest

ltis the submittin‘g firms’ sole responsibility to bear the full cost of preparation, ensure
that their submittal meets all solicitation requirements, and is properly received by the
date and time listed above Late submissions will not be consxdered

All qualification submlttals shall become the sole property of MCCSD and are subject to
public disclosure.

MCCSD reserves the right to modify any aspect of this RFQ by the issuance of
amendment(s).

MCCSD reserves the right to reject any or all submittals and to select more than one firm
to meet its legal needs.



Section 1 — Introduction and Overview of Selection Process

Overview of the Mendocino City Community Services District

The coastal community of Mendocino is an unincorporated area of Mendocino County, located 9.5 miles
south of Fort Bragg and located on the Mendocino Headlands between Slaughterhouse Gulch and Big
River

The Mendocino City Community Services District (MCCSD) provides the following municipal services:
Wastewater collection and treatment, water, (which currently mciudes groundwater management and
recycled water), and street lighting. To date, we have approxxmately 430 customers, 855 residents, and
2,500 daily visitors. Mendocino is characterized as a residential area w;th a tourist-based economy. While
the District has the name Mendocino City CSD, the commumty isan unmcorporated area.

The Board of Directors of the MCCSD consists of five (5 ) publicly elected members Members of the
Board are appointed to four-year terms with staggered elections every two years. Board officers are
elected to serve a one-year term. Board committee assignments are evaluated annua”y and determined

by the Board President. The MCCSD Board generally meets on th “}ast Monday of every month at either
5:00 or 5:30 p.m. '

The Mendocino City Community Services sttnct (MCCSD) was formed on August 31, 1970, by
Mendocino LAFCO Resolution 70-7 to provide a commumty wastewater system to collect and treat
wastewater for properties thhm the District and the Russ:an Gulch State Park located outside the
boundaries. There are three Mutual Water Compames WIthln the Dlstnct boundary that serve residential
subdivisions and one located north of the District boundary

Background of Mendocmo C!ty Commumty Serwces D;stnct

The coastal commumty of Mendocmo was founded in 1851 For 120 years, the community functioned on
individual wells and septic systems. There are approximately 430 developed parcels within the one
square mile District boundary operating from approximately 420 privately owned wels.

In 1971, a study by the Mendocino County Health Department found that most of the wells in the
community were contaminated. Wastewater treatment was the first priority of the newly formed
District. 86-percent of District voters ‘approved general obligation bonds for the wastewater treatment
plant. In 1975, four years after the District was formed, the waste water treatment plant became
operational.

Groundwater Management History

In 1985, the electorate approved adding water powers to the District. The District attempted io find an
adequate water source for the community for two years, but they could not locate a water source that
was suitable both in quantity and quality. To this day, the community continues to rely on private wells
for water supply.

In 1987, the State Legislature passed AB786 which established Water Code Section 10700 et seq. that
authorized the District to establish programs for the management of groundwater resources within the

=]



District and to function as a water replenishment district. Prior to enactment of this legisiation, the
Mendocino County Department of Health enforced the groundwater extraction provisions of the
Mendocino Town Plan.

In 1990, the District adopted a Groundwater Management Plan/Groundwater Extraction Permit
ordinance (Ord No 90-1) and entered into a memorandum of understanding with the County Board of
Supervisors (BOS Agreement 90-113). The District assumed responsibility of groundwater management
from Mendocino County.

The groundwater management authority provided by Water Code Section 10700 et seq. was considered
an interim authority until the District could find a water source syuita"bfé for a community water system.
Water Code Section 10717 provided that District authorizationgytdrhanage groundwater is terminated
upon implementation of a municipal water system supplyingwaté‘r“tqinhabitants within the boundaries
of the District. Throughout the 1990’s, the District continued its search for a water source. Due to the
lack of an adequate water source, lack of funding, and a}‘iayck of political will, the District has not
developed a municipal water system. Water was, and is; a controversial issue.:y’Therefore, the need for
groundwater extraction from the local aquifer to su‘p'p‘y‘l‘y private wells continueégté“ be necessary, and the
District’s Groundwater Management Plan which limits water extraétion remains ih“éf‘fect.

The District has adopted multiple revisio‘n,'s‘of the Groundw'até,rff\f/l‘énagement Program over the years.
The 2007 revision included a provision that when the next Stage 4 Water Shortage Crisis was declared,
Groundwater Extraction Permits and water meters would become mandatory for all developed property
within the District. ‘ T e

In 2014 the State of California adopted the Sustainable 'GdendwaterManagement Act (SGMA). MCCSD
is considered to be part of the Fort Bragg groundwater basin, which is a very low priority or de minimis
basin. MCCSD is not required to participate in SGMA afc this time. Almost all groundwater extractors
within MCCSD extract less than 1785 gal/day or less than 2-acre feet of water per year. Consequently, if
MCCSD did‘opt to participate in SGMA, the majority of property owners would be exempt from reporting
their grduhdwater extraction, making it very difficult to effectively manage the limited groundwater
within the District.

Also in 2014, MCCSD declared that a Stage 4 Water Shortage Crisis existed, which triggered mandatory
ground water extraction permits (GWEP) and water metering on all developed property. There was some
resistance to the new mandate, but the majority of property owners complied. It took about two years
to get the 40 hold out (less than 10%) property owners to comply. In the end, two property owners
remained non-compliant. One of the property owners filed legal action against the District (Gomes v
MCCSD 1), challenging the District’s authority to manage groundwater. The Mendocino County Superior
Court sided with the District and upheld the Groundwater Management Program in 2017,

The Plaintiff (Mr. Gomes) appealed the ruling and in 2019 the Court of Appeals reversed the decision,
declaring Groundwater Extraction Permit Ordinance 07-1 invalid because MCCSD adopted that version of
the GWEP Ordinance after only held one public hearing instead of the two hearings required under State
Water Code section 10700 et seq. The District then began the process to re-adopt the groundwater
management program in accordance with Water Code Section 10700 et seq. In May of 2020, MCCSD re-
adopted a GWMP with fewer than 10% (43 votes) of voters objecting.



The Plaintiff (Mr. Gomes) quickly filed another similar suit against MCCSD, and additionally tried to
challenge LAFCO’s authority to confirm MCCSD’s active water powers. The plaintiff then agreed to a
tolling agreement with the District while he and some collogues ran for election to the MCCSD Board.
MCCSD had 4 of 5 Board seats up for election in November of 2020. Gomes and his colleagues lost the
election and resumed the litigation. In March of 2023, the Mendocino County Superior Court again sided
with the District, and upheld the newly adopted groundwater management program. The decision has
again been appealed by the plaintiff and we are awaiting a ruling.

The drought of 2020-21 garnered MCCSD international media attention as wells ran dry and the
neighboring water district stopped outside sales. Concerns around chmate change and an influx of new
property owners has rejuvenated discussions around a possible commumty water system. In 2021 the
MCCSD applied for technical assistance from the State Water Resources Control Board, Safe and
Affordable Funding for Equity and Resilience (SAFER) program SAFER assrgned GHD Engineering as a
technical assistance provider to MCCSD in 2023. SAFER tends to strive for pubhc water system
consolidation. There may be two dozen small public water systems within MCCSD The goal of the
technical assistance request is to work on a current water system feasibility study The first phase is to
determine if a sufficient water source exists, determine the boundaries of the prorect/servrce area, and
engage the community to see if there is support. This will help the State to determine ifa possible
project exists. Phase two would look at desrgn and costs of a possrble community water system, and
have a larger community outreach por‘uon

Background on desired !egé! ekpertise

MCCSD is seeking the servnces of a ﬂrm to provnde hrgh qualrty, efﬂcrent regulatory, transactional, and
litigation legal services in various areas of law related to public agencies, groundwater management, and
wastewater management o

MCCSD has. several recurring legal tasks relating to common operations of the District, including Public
Agency Law and Water Law. Legal services related to Public Agency law includes specialization in at least
the following areas:

° Brown Act, ;

» Public Records Act,

* Public contract law, inc[‘uding‘ public works bidding

* Public agency ordinances, resolutions, policies, and procedures,
* Public agency assessment and fee setting (Prop 218)

» Conflict of interest and ethics

* Risk avoidance including claims processing and management

¢ Grant management and compliance



° Human resources practices including employment contracts, Public Employees’ Pension Reform
Act (PEPRA), Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) and Cal OSHA safety
requirements (such as Injury lilness and Prevention Plans), employee training requirements
(such as AB1234 and others)

* Environmental law including California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and National
Environmental Policy Act (NEPA)

In addition, MCCSD’s need for legal expertise will extend to water law, including:

e Groundwater law and the Sustainable Groundwater Manageme‘nt Act (SGMA), including a
thorough understanding and knowledge of the California",De’partment of Water Resources’ role
in groundwater management, implementation, admini‘s‘ti*a'ti‘on and enforcement

e Water rights

* Groundwater banking

° Use of reclaimed and recycled water

o Wastewater treatment and dxscharge comphance’

The above listing of legal services requested is not exhaustlve Other specialty legal services may be
required from time to time, including non- recurrmg tasks where MCCSD may require retention of special
counsel. If special counsel is retained, the selected general counsel firm: wxll be required to coordinate
and consult with third- party spec:al counsel as needed

How the Selected Firm Wx!l Be Utlhzed

The selected firm(s) will execute a General Legal Services Agreement (Attachment A). It is expected that
a scope and budget will be issued for each fiscal year ;dent;fymg hourly billing rates and expected level of
services for that year.

It is expected that there will be common recurring general counsel services needed such as reviewing
public meeting agendas and background materials, attendance at regular and special Board meetings,
attendance at certain standing committee meetmgs review of contracts and other legal documents,
legal research and advice, and other general counsel duties as needed. Such work will be performed on
an hourly basis or on a'standard monthly retainer fee as negotiated with the successful firm.

Occasionally, special tasks or projects, such as engagement with regulatory agencies or litigation, may
arise requiring additional legal support from the selected firm. When these specialty projects or tasks
arise, MCCSD will issue a request for scope of work, budget and schedule from the selected firm. Legal
work on specialty tasks or projects will not proceed until MCCSD has approved. A separate task order will
be issued documenting the agreed scope, budget, sayment terms (fixed fes or hourly) and scheduie.

Detailed invoicing shall be provided to MCCSD for both general counsel and special projects which
itemizes services provided by task and hours of services provided.



All services shall be directed by the MCCSD Superintendent or their designated representative. All
services provided will be performed to the highest legal, ethical, and professional standards.

Should a respondent to this request for qualifications require any special terms and conditions included
in a contract for legal services that is not included in Attachment A, such terms must be clearly identified
with the submission. See additional information below. MCCSD will consider any requested special terms
and conditions in their evaluation.




Selection Criteria

The criteria for evaluation and consideration of firms to be invited to interviews shall be based on, but
not limited to the following:

1. Qualifications and experience of the firm with regard to procedural, regulatory, transactional and
litigation matters, and particularly the specific individuals proposed as lead counsel and other
key staff. Lead counsel will have a minimum of Ten (10) years demonstrated experience in public
agency representation. Other principal staff to be assigned shall have demonstrated experience
in the specific areas of law to be assigned. Available time commltments for lead counsel and
principal assigned staff will be identified in the subm!ttal : '

2. References. Provide a minimum of five (5) public agency references with attention to references
for lead counsel and other principal staff to be assigned.

3. Location of key staff. MCCSD currently holds aH Pubhc meetings in person only. The Board and
Staff are comfortable meeting with counsel i in closed session via teleconference or by phone
when appropriate. There are occasions when counsel is requested to part:c;pate in person for a
public meeting or hearing. Lead counsel and pnnczpal staff located in offices local to MCCSD is
preferred, but not mandatory. No. apphcant will be: d:squahﬁed so long as the firm has an office
within the State of California.

4. Rate and payment terms.

5. Quality and completeness of the submtttal (o) that aH mformatton requested is presented in a
clear and concise manner.

6. Absence of, or suitable plan for mitigation of,f‘pbtential conflicts of interest

The highest-ranking firm(s) may be invited to further demqnstrate their qualifications during a formal
interview, the format of which will be determined by MCCSD.

Evaluation and Selection Process

Qualification review: MCCSD will review and evaluate each submittal to determine how well it meets the
requirements for the services defined herein. MCCSD reserves the right to select firm(s) which, in
MCCSD’s sole discretion, will best meet the needs of the organization. MCCSD may elect to reject any or
all submittals.

Selection process: Based on MCCSD’s evaluation of qualifications received, a short list of firms deemed
most suitable will be prepared. Formal interviews may be conducted of the top-ranked firms at MCCSD
discretion. Following the results of reference checking and formal interviews (if needed), a ranking of
firms will be prepared in advance of contract negotiations. If negotiations are unsuccessful with the
highest ranked firm(s), the next ranked firm(s) will be invited to negotiate. Formal approval of the final
selection will be made by a majority vote of the MCCSD Board of Directors, which will make an award as
it deems necessary regardless of assigned ranking.




Section 2 — Submittal Requirements

1. The submittal should emphasize responding to the requirements set forth herein. Firms must
demonstrate their capabilities, background, expertise and experience to allow an effective
evaluation of the firm(s) that will provide the best value to MCCSD. The submittal of

qualifi

cations should include, at a minimum, the following information:

a) Cover letter, including a certification that the submittal complies with all requirements

of the RFQ.

b) Executive Summary, including a brief summary of:tne,ﬁrm’s origin, ownership, size,

areas of expertise, and home office locations forke'y staff with proximity to MCCSD
offices and operations. The executive summary s'h‘Oueld identify if there are legal services
requested that will not be performed bythe?respondent firm.

Statement of Qualifications (Firm quahfzcatlons with a focus on assigned personnel).
Include a discussion of the key personnel s recent experience drrect!y related to
providing the procedural, regulatory, transactional and litigation legal services
requested, including the number of years,of such exper:ence.

2. Additional information required. Tabular format is preferred wherever appropriate.

a} References. Provide a mmlmum of ﬁve public agency, or special district clients for which
comparable services have been performed Provide the ‘name, mailing address, email
address, and telephone number for each chent s prmcxpal representative with the
closest knowledge of the firm’s performance lnc!ude the dates of the engagement and
indicate if it is on-going. Provide a bnef summary overview of the types of services
provides to each reference

) Provide a list of current public agency or private clients that may directly or indirectly
affect the performance of work or create the appearance of a conflict of interest with
the anticipated assignment as counsel for MCCSD. Describe the nature of the
conflict/potential conflict. At a minimum, relationships with any of the following must be
identified.

= The County ofMendocino and any departments or committees therein

s Any outsrde organizations represented by one or more of the MCCSD Board of
Directors

¢) Forany identified potential conflicts, describe the firm’s internal controls and

e

procedures, as well as a specific plan to mitigate each potential conflict

~—

List any subconsultants proposed including a description of the business relationship
between the prime proposer and subconsultant, and a list of the types of legal services
each would provide.

)} Fee Schedule. Provide a listing of hourly rates for all staff categories that may engage.
Specifically identify by name the proposed hourly rate for all key staff. Rates for any



subconsultants must be included together with disclosure of any markup of
subconsultant fees or reimbursable expenses incurred, including travel. The fee
schedule proposed should be valid for the first 18 months of any contract, assuming up
to 120 days from qualifications submission to contract execution.

f) Provide the following business information:
i.  Length of time the firm has been in business

ii.  Length of time at the local business address

iii.  List the type and number of any businessjli:censes
iv.  Names and titles of all officers or the firm
v. Any other names under whxch the ﬂrm has conducted business

vi. If a sole proprietorship, the name of the sole propnetor

vii.  If the firm is incorporated, the type of corporat:on and the }unsdxctnon where
incorporated
vili.  Provide the apprepriate federa! tax ID nd‘mber

ix.  Provide the name and remittance address for any invoices
X. Prowde the focation of the ofﬂces from whzch key staff are assighed

3. Astandard Iegal servnces agreement is attached (Attachment A). If there are exceptions,
additions, or deletions to the contractual terms in Attachment A, or to any RFQ requirements,
provide specific details, mcludmg suggested Ianguage that would make the documents
acceptable. If there are no exceptrons taken, note in writing that there are none. This
mformatlon will be considered in the select:on process.

Additional Pre-Contract Requirements

MCCSD may make any such investigations it deems necessary or prudent to determine the ability of
respondents to provide the services requested. Following review of initial submittals, additional
information may be requested to better evaluate proposing firms, and the firms will provide MCCSD all
such requested information as is commercially reasonable. MCCSD reserves the right to reject any or all
submittals and may negotiate with one or more firms prior to providing a recommendation to the
MCCSD Board for award. The final scope of services for inclusion in any resulting contract will be
negotiated between MCCSD and the selected firm(s). It is expected that the selected firm will fully
participate in the scope negotiations prior to contract execution without ¢ compensation.



This Page Is Left Intentionally Blank

10



LEGAL SERVICES AGREEMENT TEMPLATE (Attachment A)

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into on , 2023, by and between the Mendocino
City Community Services District ("MCCSD"), and , a professional

corporation.

FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION OF THE PROMISES, COVENANTS AND CONDITIONS CONTAINED
HEREIN, THE PARTIES HERETO DO MUTUALLY AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

1) Retention. MCCSD hereby retains to perform the legal services described in
Paragraph 2 below, and hereby accepts such retention and agrees to perform

such services under the terms and conditions set forth'

2) Services, shall provide Iegal adwce and consultation relating to

representation of the MCCSD and as set forth be!ow

a)

Furnish professional services in the amcunt necessary to complete promptly and
effectively work assigned under this Agreement. - shall not
commence services under this Agreement until prowded with the dlrectxon to doso by
the Superintendent or hlS desggnee

_(Firm) s specxﬂca”y prov;dmg the services of ___ (specifically
identified assigned attorney) o Lj . for pnmary representation responsibility
under this Agreement. (Flrm) B _will not substltute primary representation
responsmihty in prov;dmg the services descrlbed herein without the express written
agreement of the Supermtendent or his desngnee

WIH provide MCCSD with copies of all correspondence with
persons and agencies related to this Agreement.

For purposes of this Agreement, an attorney-client relationship is created between

and MCCSD and is expected to manage this attorney-
client relationship appropriately, including a complete conflict check and continuous
written communication of any actual, apparent or potential conflicts with respect to this
relationship.

The services performed by under this Agreement shall be under the
general supervision and direction of the Superintendent of MCCSD or his designee, and
____shallnot accept direction from any other MCCSD official.

shall provide MCCSD reports related to services under this
Agreement in reasonable intervals as so requested.

It is understood that MCCSD, acting through its designees, shall make all policy decisions
concerning the performance of services of

i1



shall attend all regular and special Board meetings and make such
appearances as the Superintendent or MCCSD Board determines are necessary or
appropriate during the term of this Agreement.

shall not institute any administrative proceeding, arbitration or
litigation unless directed to do so by the MCCSD Board or the Superintendent or his
designee.

shall not compromise or settle any claim, protest or dispute against
the MCCSD without the prior consent of the Board of MCCSD

3) Term, The term of this Agreement shall commence on . , 2024, and continue until
such time as the Agreement is terminated pursuantut‘o‘ 5SLecti‘on 12 hereof.

4) Compensation. Subject to the provisions of subsectlons (a)- (b) below, MCCSD shall pay
compensation to for t‘h‘e;servnces rendered hereunder as follows:

a)

b)

All services to be performed by ; pursuant to this Agreement shall
be performed by at hourly rates be for attorneys time for advisory
services, for attorneys’ time for litigation services, and for the time of paralegals and
legal assistants as ;dent:ﬂed in.the apphcant requsred rate sheet attached hereinto as
Attachment 1. Any change in this rate range must be approved in writing by the MCCSD
Board before being apphed MCCSD shaH not be responsrble for the cost of services
provided by any other md:vrduals unless such services and the rate of compensation are
approvedin advance and in wntmg by the: MCCSD- Board Compensa‘uon under this
Agreement shall be limited to no more than SXX, XXX per fiscal year. shall
advise the Supermtendent in wntxng, when expenditures have reached 70% of the total
contract amount

MCCSD shall not be charged fOr‘secretarial or other support services.

5) Expenses. MCCSD shall pay for its incidental expenses incurred in
connection with this Agreement as follows:

a)

Reasonable and necessary actual out-of-pocket expenses incurred in the course of
rendering such services, consisting only of costs of toll, document binding, filing fees,
travel (only between locations specifically pre-approved by MCCSD and at published
coach air fares or IRS standard mileage rates), and cost of commercial printing.

shall use cost effective means in incurring any permitted
reimbursable cost. No markup or surcharge shall be added. Any single out-of-pocket
expenditure in excess of $300, including travel, is subject to the prior written approvai of
the Superintendent.

MCCSD shall not be obligated to pay any of the following: full hourly rates for travel
time, except for actual time working; all other travel time shall be paid at a fifty percent
(50%) discount of the traveler’s standard hourly fee; lodging unless approved; auto



6)

rental fees; cab or other transportation fare from the office to home; meals for working
overtime; secretarial overtime; or costs for transmitting documents by email.

¢) MCCSD shall have no liability for any other charges or expenses unless approved in
writing by the Superintendent prior to being incurred.

Claims for Services. shall file with the MCCSD claims for services rendered
during the term of this Agreement not later than the tenth (10th) day following the end of each
calendar month. The claims shall identify the number of hours of services for which
compensation is claimed, the individual(s) providing such services, the services provided and all
incurred costs and expenses for which reimbursement is bemg claimed. Each such monthly
statement shall include a cumulative total of ali serv:ces,and cost charges billed under this
Agreement. MCCSD shall pay such claims not later than thirty (30) calendar days following the
date of receipt if approved. No claim shall be pa:d without approva! of the MCCSD
Superintendent, in its sole discretion. MCCSD may request addmonal information or clarification
to support the claim of from ~_who will promptly
provide the requested information. e

Independent Contractor.

a) All services delivered by S *f" under thns Agreement shall be provided under
the coordination with MCCSD. It is understood and agreed that isan
independent contractor and that no relatlonshxp of employer—employee exists between
MCCSD and _ S hereto

b) His further understood and agreed by the part;es hereto that inthe
performance of its obligations hereunder is subject to the control or direction of MCCSD
through the Superintendent of MCCSD merely as to the result to be accomplished by the
services hereunder agreed to be rendered and performed and not as to the means and
methods for accomplishing the results. No permitted or required approval by MCCSD of

- personnel, costs, documents or services of shall be construed as
‘making MCCSD responsible for the manner in which performs services
or for any acts, errors or omissions of . Such approvals are intended

only to'give MCCSD the right to satisfy itself with the cost and status of work performed by

¢) If, in the performance of this Agreement, any third persons are employed by

» such persons shall be entirely and exclusively under the direction,
supervision and control of - All terms of employment, including hours,
wages, working conditions, discipline, hiring and discharging or any other terms of
employment, or requirements of law, shall be determined by , and
MCCSD shall have no right or authority over such person or the terms of such employment.

d) ltis further understood and agreed that shall issue W-2, or with
respect to partners Schedule K-1, Forms for income and employment tax purposes for all of

13



's assigned personnel under the terms and conditions of this

Agreement.

8) Insurance. shall maintain in force at all times during the term of this
Agreement, and any extensions or modifications thereto, insurance covering its operations as set
forth in Exhibit “A.” It is understood and agreed that MCCSD shall not pay any sum to

under this Agreement unless and until MCCSD is satisfied that all insurance

required by this Agreement is in force at the time services hereunder are rendered.

9) Assignment and Subcontracting. No performance to be rendered ar payment due under this
Agreement may be assigned or transferred, and S shall not subcontract any
work hereunder, without the prior written approval of the Supermtendent of MCCSD.

10} Audit of Records.

a) shall retain aH records, including but not hmnted to, documents,
reports, books, papers and accounting records which pertain to any ‘work or transactions
under this Agreement for a period of four (4 (4 1 years after expiration of this Agreement.
MCCSD, or any duly authorlzed representatxve of MCCSD, shall, with reasonable notice,
have access to and the rrght to examine, audit and copy such records. MCCSD agrees
that may, in thexr drscretlon mamtam all or part of the client file in
electronic format usmg secure cloud storage services.

b) . shall reimburse MCCSD for: any overpayment determined to have
been made as a result of an auditof = o 's records not later than ten
days fo!lowmg the date of service of wrltten notice to of the
amount of the overpayment

11) Termmatron This Agreement and the attorney- chent relationship between

and MCCSD may be terminated in whole or in part by MCCSD at any time upon written notice to
. Upon termination of this Agreement, MCCSD will pay
the fees, costs and expenses due under Sections 4 and 5, as of the effective date of termination,
in no case exceedmg the limitation set forth in paragraph 4. In the event of such termination,
shall transmit to MCCSD all records, materials, work product and other
matters developed or coHected pursuant to this Agreement.

12) Governing Law; Venue. AH claims, counterclaims, disputes and other matters in guestion

between the MCCSD and arising out of or relating to this Agreement or
breach theraof will be decided undzr the laws of the State o f California or any other dispute
resolution methods agreeable to both parties. California law shall govern the interprztation of

this Agreement. Venue for any action related to this Agreement shall be in the Mendocino
County Superior Court.

13) Compliance with Laws. shall observe and comply with all applicable
Federal, State, and County laws, regulations and ordinances

14



14) Licenses and Permits. shall possess and maintain all necessary licenses,

permits, certificates and credentials required by the laws of the United States, the State of
California, County of Mendocino and all other appropriate governmental agencies, including any
certification and credentials required by MCCSD. Failure to maintain the licenses, permits,
certificates, and credentials shall be deemed a breach of this Agreement and constitutes
grounds for the termination of this Agreement by MCCSD.

15) Conflict of Interest. and s officers and employees

shall not have a financial interest, or acquire any ﬁnancnarl mterest direct or indirect, in any
business, property or source of income which could be f nanaa!ly affected by or otherwise

conflict in any manner or degree with the performan

of services required under this

Agreement.

16) Use of Funds. It is understood and agreedk'th‘at'"ho funds provided bnyMCCSD pursuant to this

Agreement shall be used by . forany political activity"Ql’,political

contribution.

17) Nondiscrimination in Emp!oyment Services, Beneﬁts and Facmtzes

a)

agrees and assures MCCSD that and any
subcontractors shall comply with all apphcable federal state and local anti-discrimination
laws, regulations, and ordinances and to not’ un!awful!y dxscnmmate harass, or allow
harassment against any employee apphcant for employment employee or agent of MCCSD,
or recipient of services centemplated to be provided or ‘provided under this Agreement,
because of race, ancestry, marital status, color religious creed, political belief, national
origin, ethnic group;xdentlﬂ‘catxon, sex, sexual orientation, age (over 40), medical condition
(including HIV and AIDS), or phyksica‘!‘ or.mental disability. shall ensure
that the evaluation and treatment of its employees and applicants for employment, the
treatment of MCCSD employees and agents, and recipients of services are free from such
discrimination and harassment.

represents that it is in compliance with and agrees that it will continue
to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 US.C. § 12101 et seq.), the
Fair Employment and Housing Act (Government Code §§ 12900 et seq.), and regulations and
guidelines issued pursuant thereto.

agrees to compile data, maintain records and submit Lraports to permit

effective enforcement of alf applicable antidiscrimination laws and this provision.

shall include this nondiscrimination provision in all subcontracts
related to this Agreement.

15



18) Indemnification. For professional services provided under this Agreement, and to the fullest

extent permitted by law, shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless
MCCSD and the MCCSD Board of Directors respectively, and their officers, directors, agents,
employees and volunteers from and against any and all claims, demands, actions, losses,
liabilities, damages, and costs, including reasonable attorneys' fees, arising out of or resulting
from the negligent performance of the professional services provided under this Agreement.
This indemnity obligation shall not be limited by the types and amounts of insurance or self-
insurance maintained by or S ' s subconsultants or
subcontractors at any tier. Nothing in this Indemnity obhgat:on shall be construed to create any
duty to, any standard of care with reference to, or any habmty or obligation, contractual or
otherwise, to any third party. The provisions of th:s indemnity obhgatlon shall survive the
expiration or termination of the Agreement.

19) Time. Time is of the essence of this Agreenﬁéﬁt.,

0) Interpretation. This Agreement shall be deemed to have been prepared equally by both of the
parties, and the Agreement and its"ihdiyidual provisions shall not be construed or interpreted
more favorably for one party on the bas\i‘s'that) the other party prepared it.

21) Reports. R shall, w:thout addlt:ona! compensatnon therefore, make fiscal,
program evaluatlon progress, and such other reports as may be reasonably required by MCCSD
concerning i~ ’s activities as they affect the contract duties and purposes

herein. MCCSD shaH explam procedures for reportmg the required information.

22) Prior Agke‘eme‘nts. This Agreement constitutes the entire contract between MCCSD and
regarding the subject matter of this Agreement. Any prior agreements,
whether oral or written, between MCCSD and/or the County of Mendocino and

regarding the subject matter of this Agreement are hereby terminated
effective immediately upon full execution of this Agreement.

23) Duplicate Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in duplicate counterparts. The
Agreement shall be deemed executed when it has been signed by both parties.

24) Amendments. This Agreement may be modified or amended, or any of its provisions waived,
only by written agreements executed by both parties.

25} Entire Agreement. This instrument and Exhibit “A” attached hereto constitute the entire
Agreement between MCCSD and concerning the subject matter hereof.

16



26) Notices. Notices concerning this Agreement shall be deemed to have been served when
deposited in the United States Mail, first class postage prepaid and addressed as follows, or by e-

mail, with proof of transmission, to:

Mendocino City Community Services District
Attn: Ryan Rhoades

PO Box 1029

Mendocino, CA 95460

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have eXecntéd this Agreement d'n"‘,che date and year first
written above. i .

Dated:

Mendocino Cikty:Cc‘akr'nmunitnyervices Diétrict

By:
Ryan Rhoades, District Superintendent

17



Memo

To:

From:

cc:

Date:

Re:

Board of Directors

Katie Bates

Jim Jackson

12/1/23

Ad hoc committees

After looking back through meeting minutes from the past three years, it appears the following
ad hoc committees exist and potentially still need to be in place:

L]

Legal: Dennak

MUSD- Tank Project: Jim

New/ Expanded Use: Jim and Dennak
Conflict of Interest: Matthew and Dennak

Governance Guideline Review: Ishvi and Dennak

“The Brown Act does not apply to ad hoc or temporary advisory committees composed of less
than a majority of the board. In establishing an ad hoc or temporary advisory committee, the
board should strictly define the purpose of the committee and set a time frame to accomplish
that purpose. An ad hoc or temporary advisory committee is advisory only; the board has not
delegated any decision-making power and the committee will be returning to the full board to
make a public recommendation.” ~ The Brown Act: FAQ;s

Staff recommends appointing another Board member to both the Legal and Tank Project
committees, but sees the others falling away within the next year, if not sooner.



November and December 2023 Superintendent’s Report

Wastewater Treatment Plant:

-Operators performed routine repair and maintenance to the WWTP in November and early December of
2023. Which included valve exercising.

-Staff have found a new service provider from the bay area for the effluent pumps and we are working to
schedule an appointment.

-The District Bobeat skid-steer, “tractor” has been having hydraulic issues for the past month, and is
currently not reliable. We had a service inspection on 11/16. He advised replacing a number of parts for
routine maintenance. We can expect a bill in this $6-8,000 range after parts and labor. Staff are working to
schedule a return visit.

-Once the tractor is repaired MCCSD plans to transport two influent pumps down to Novato for a rebuild.
One pump is from the Hill Ranch Lift Station and belong to Hills Ranch.

-Staff updated the District Emergency Response/Contingency Plan, and passed a hazardous materials
inspection with County Environmental Health regulators.

-Hach service technician Clint arrived on 12/6 1o service both the turbidity and dissolved oxygen sensors. A
programing update has help stabilize blower function.

-Aerzen service on the primary blower is now scheduled for J anuary 3, 2024,

-Redwood Roofers started and completed the new office roof project. They were professional, clean, and
efficient. The new office roof is complete and looks great.

-Staft have received multiple after hour alarm call outs in the past few weeks primarily related to power
surges.

Staff and the community really came together to save the town in the face of a major failure at the WWTP
just before Thanksgiving. I would like to thank our hard working operators, Fort Bragg Plumbing and
Electric, David Puder’s Tractor Service, Ryan Cronin’s Welding Service, Fort Bragg Septic, Thompson’s
Septic, A-1 Septic, staff at the City of Fort Bragg WWTP, Pace Supply, Aerzen Emergency Service, United
Rentals, GHD, our neighbors, and our RWQCB Regulator. The town and the District owe you a great debt.
Thank you for coming to our aid on such short notice and working tirelessly to get the MCCSD wastewater
system back on line. It should be noted that having 5 septage trucks on site costs about $2.500 per hour, and
in the future if something fails we are looking a $25,000-$30,000 per day to move raw influent to Fort
Bragg.

Qutfall Update: Alpha Diving reports they are “locked and loaded” but continue to have concerns with the
long period swell. Diver safety has to be the top priority. They have not confirmed a dive date as of this time,
but they have never let us down. GHD submitted the effluent dilution evaluation.

Recveled Water:
MCCSD did not transfer any recycled water during the month of November or December

Biosolids Trailer and Transport:

-MCCSD staff transported one load of biosolids to Redwood Landfill in November.

-The biosolids dryer stopped working mid-November. We ordered and installed replacement sensor and the
dryer is back in service for the moment. We are also working to schedule a site visit with the service tech out
of Texas.




Grant and Project Updates:
-No updates from FEMA on the January Storm Damage re-imbursement.

-11/8/23 staff received news that the MCCSD planning grant application to evaluate and design replacement
aspects of the WW collections system, treatment process, and outfall, is not a CWSRF priority project at this
time, and our request is not anticipated to be funded this fiscal year. Funding has been prioritized for systems
with NPDES violations and connecting previously un-serviced areas.

-The MCCSD Recycled Water grant application remains under state review. Estimated time of review is 9-
12 months.

-We continue to wait on DFA approval for the SAFER technical assistance funding proposal by GHD. DFA
requested another meeting on 12/18. There have been a lot of meetings, but SAFER has not awarded any
funding.

-ESS grant writing consultants, submitted a draft funding proposal for comment. It was not the document we
were expecting. It does not appear ESS will be of much service to the District at this time.

-EKI grant writing consultants cc’d MCCSD multiple request for updates from the State, related to the
recycled water pre-application. Both requests appear to have gone unanswered by the State.

-MUSD continues to negotiate with the contractor on their bid for the emergency water storage and supply
project. It appears both parties are near agreement. MUSD may have to request some additional state
funding.

Safety Meeting and Plant Safetv Inspection:

The 30-minute monthly safety meeting was held November 14, 2023. The topic was review of the District
Emergency Response/Contingency Plan. Staff also reviewed evacuation routes and locations of safety
equipment. No safety incidents were reported.

Sanitary Sewer Collection System:

There were no Sanitary Sewer overflow reports for the period April 12, 2023~ December 13, 2023

-Work continues at the Heeser St. lift station, FBE has installed a new transducer, and we also have a backup
unit on the shelf.

-Replacement valves and fittings have arrived for the Heeser Lift Station. Fort Bragg Plumbing helped
establish a phased work plan. On 12/7 Fort Bragg Septic was on site with two pumper trucks to assist with
Phase one which included pumping down the wet well, draining %4 miles of discharge line, pumping out
additional influent and replacement of two isolation gate valves. FBP plans to return 12/14 to install a
replacement check valve. Once the valves are in we can begin work on the pump.

Other:

Staff and President Murphy met with Community Center staff and a local business owner for initial brain
storming around pros and cons of possible District expansion. The goals are to find ways that improve the
District’s ability to qualify for grant funding, and explore funding ideas for the Community Center.



NMemo

To: MCCSD Board of Directors

From: District Superintendent

cc: Jim Jackson

Date: December 1, 2023

Re: Groundwater Management Report
The 2023-24 Rain Year

October 1, 2023 was the beginning of the 2023-24 rain year. Average annual precipitation in Mendocino
is 39.20 inches, and average rainfall in November is 4.86” inches. 2.38” inches of rainfall has been
measured in the District for the month, as of November 30, 2023 (Figure 1, Table 1).

2(23-24 Rainfall, Inches

653
Ve RS 397

5.00 \\&
500 \.\
: 200 \\2.95
T s \K\
200 \‘:\;—
4 050
.00 B PP B
\W* 0.07 s
0.00 e
[0 Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr thay Jure July Aug Sept
donth
v J023-24 Ralr e Aperage Monthily
] Oct Nov Dsc Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept
| 2023-24 Rainfall 2.18 2.58 .00 o.o0 0.00 Q.00 .00 000 .00 G.00 0.00 0.00
2023-24 Cumulstive 2.18 4,586 4,56 4.56 4,58 4,56 4.58 4.58 4,586 4.56 4.56 4,58
(Average Monthly 2.34 4.G66 710 700 8.27 582 2.82 1.37 0.43 AR .18 0.68
Ao Cumulstive 2,54 7.20 1430 21350 27.57 33.49 36.41 57.78 3827 3835 38.54 39.20
2023-24 Rainfall to Date: 4.56
43 yr Annus! Average Rain: 38.20
Percent of Annual Rainfall: 11.6%

Figure 1, Table 1



Total Rainfall for Rain Year 2022-23 was 41.93” inches. Mendocino received 106% of normal annual
rainfall during the last water year. By November 30, 2023, total rainfall since October 1, 2023 was 4.56”
inches, 11.6% of average annual rainfall.

2023-24 Flvatin T Feef
Loadoa MHE
Diata Feorn : Commarety Sevvice District 104K Lommionds A5 8w
Tray Oet How Dec Jan Fel Mar Ay May Jun Jdl A Sep
1 ont
2 mij
3 s
4 021
b .37
b (.04
7 oz | 0od
8 024 | oot
q 003
10 .19
11 00z
12 001 003
13 )] LIk
14 139
15 003
15 029 | 003
17 0oz | 047
18 IR TR
19 0ol
2
a1 (26 | 0ol
22 0ar | oo
23 00t
24
25 010
26
a7
28 nan
29 nme | oot
30 0
3l
Sum 218 | 23% | 000 0.0 .00 Lo o0 .00 non a0 .00 000
Cout 17 18 Il 0 1 0 0 ] 1] { i 1
kax 087 | 047 | oo a0 000 000 0.0 a0 .00 ann oo 000
- Ramny Days ¥ Wl ater vear Total Ramfal 456
Madmum Daily Rairdal 0y | [
Table 1 2023-24 Rainfall Record




November 2023 Depth-to-Water ( DTWW)

The average DTW measurements District-wide in the 24 monitoring wells on November 17, 2023 was
18.09" ft. DTW averages are about 0.07 ft. better than October of 2023, about 1.3 ft. better than
November of 2022, and about 2 ft. lower than November of 2021. The DTW averages in the 5 drought
monitoring wells reported at 22.13 ft.

Figure 2 November 2023, Depth-To-Water Chart

Average Depth-to-Water in Mendocino

0~y Y 2 T V- T S s B o S v | oM <N [T S ++] 3 O - Nom

(] o o Q o o o < ™ -t b R i i o] b i b ™ od o~ o4

o QO 0O 6 o & & & o S OoC o O 0O O o0 oo o o o

~ o~ ~ ™~ o ™~ o~ o~ o~ ~ ™~ ™~ ™~ ) o ™~ o~ ™~ N o ~™ o~

e T T T T S R o T T T T T B S O

QQQQQ:;QQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQ

o O C o o o o o Q0 o o o o o o o C o O O o

L i i s Aaui - ™ Ll 4 ~ -t Ll i i Ll Lanld Ranl -t -t o~ -4 Rl

4.00
11/15/2019

6.00 < 11150019
o 1878 ft 11/23/21
8.00 Y. @ 16.15 1t
10.00 11/17/23
18.09 ft

11721422
1941t

Depth to Water, ft
o et e
(o] = -]
8 8 8

18.00

11/6/20
21.72 fi.

20.00

22.00

24.00

Following the Water Shortage Contingency Plan. The MCCSD Board declared on April 19, 2023 that
no water shortage exists within the MCCSD boundaries. According to the Water Shortage Contingency
Plan, (p. 14) “Calendar for Declaring Water Shortage,... If a water shortage is not declared by the end
of May, no further evaluation is required until the following January 31.” MCCSD staff continue to monitor
and follow the plan. The MCCSD water table is on average at its lowest during October and November.
The Superintendent recommends continued caution and conservation.



Following a request for additional information related to Groundwater Management, staff would like to
report: the following:

There were no applications for well modification or well replacement during the month.

The District continues to make progress towards compliance with groundwater extraction permitting.
Nine commercial properties were sent letters on October 16, 2023 notifying them of potential compliance
issues, and requested that they complete a groundwater extraction permit application. The good news
is that District staff have heard back from all nine properties and received the requested GWEP
applications as appropriate. District staff appreciate businesses taking the first step towards compliance.
Staff have 30 days from the receipt of a GWEP application to determine if it is complete. Staff have
requested additional documentation from some business. Staff have not fully reviewed all applications.
We are optimistic that more properties will be receiving permit approvals in the near future.

District staff met with the State Division of Drinking Water staff on Tuesday 11/21 to learn that they were
conducting some site visits on 11/27/23. The State is still encouraging consolidation of water systems.
Some properties may face challenges, but they believe there is a path forward for most properties to
receive a permit.

We are still waiting to hear from County planning how they plan to facilitate collaboration between
MCCSD, the state Division of Drinking Water, and other regulatory agencies which have jurisdiction
within Mendocino.

We have received notification from County planning of a few building permit applications within the
District which may also trigger the need for groundwater extraction permit applications. As a reminder,
per Ordinance 2020-01 all new development, changes in use, or expansion of existing use require a
valid groundwater extraction permit. A GWEP shall be obtained prior to:

1) issuance of a Mendocino Count Use Permit or Coastal Development;
2) issuance of a Mendocino County Building Permit for other than minor repair and maintenance; or

3) issuance of a Mendocino County Well Permit.



